
CITY OF NORTH OAKS

Regular City Council Meeting
Thursday, July 08, 2021

7 PM, Via Teleconference or Other Electronic Means Only
MEETING AGENDA

Remote Access  - City Council members will participate by telephone or other electronic means pursuant to
Minn. Stat. §13D.021. Any person wishing to monitor the meeting electronically from a remote location
may do so by calling the following Zoom meeting videoconference number: 1-312-626-6799, Webinar
ID: 872 6715 8192 or by joining the meeting via the following link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87267158192.  Individuals wishing to monitor the meeting remotely may do
so in real time by watching the livestream of the meeting on North Oaks Channel 16 and on the City’s
website. Due to the existing COVID-19 Health Pandemic, no more than five (5) members of the public
may be in Council Chambers (Community Room, 100 Village Center Drive,  MN) during the meeting.
Once room capacity is met, anyone wishing to attend the meeting above the five (5) members of the
public who may be present in the room during the meeting will be required to monitor the meeting
remotely.

1.  Call to Order

2.  Roll Call

3.  Pledge of Allegiance

4.  Citizen Comments  - Members of the public are invited to make comments to the Council during the
public comments section. Up to four minutes shall be allowed for each speaker. No action will be taken
by the Council on items raised during the public comment period unless the item appears as an agenda
item for action.

5.  Approval of Agenda

6.  Consent Agenda  - These are items that are considered routine and can be acted upon with one vote.
6a. Approval of June 2021 City Financials

Approval of EFTs and Check #:  tbd

6b. Approval of Licenses:
Mechanical: General Heating and Cooling LLC;  Marsh Heating & Air Conditioning; Plumbing Restoration &

Services LLC; The Fireplace Guys: ; TLT Enterprises, Inc.; 

1



City Council July 08, 2021

2

6c. Approval of Special City Council Meeting Minutes of June 10, 2021
06.10.2021 Sp City Council Minutes.pdf

6d. Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes of June 11th, 2021 and June 18th, 2021
06.10.2021 City Council Minutes.pdf

06.18.2021 City Council Minutes.pdf

6e. Approval of Waddle Recycling contract

6f. Approval of Gambling Permit for Common Bond Communities - Birdies for Hope Golf Event
Birdies for Hope - Gambling Request.pdf

7.  Petitions, Requests & Communications  - 
Deputy Mike Burrell Report

8.  Unfinished Business
8a. Proposed change to building permit refund form

Proposed_Building_Permit_refund_form.pdf

9.  New Business
9a. Consider approval of Conditional Use Permit for 16 Cherrywood Circle

Resolution 1426 Approving 16 Cherrywood Circle CUP.pdf

9b.Consider approval of application for final plan/plat/subdivision for the Island Field Development Site ( Site H of the
1999 East Oaks PDA legally described as Tract D, REGISTERED LAND SURVEY NO. 561, RAMSEY
COUNTY, MINNESOTA), and associated JPA for water and sewer services with White Bear Township
Island Field Council Packet 7.8.2021.pdf

9c. Discussion and possible action on convening meetings in public

10.  Council Member Reports
Night to Unite Proclamation

Night to Unite Proclamation 2021.pdf

11.  City Administrator Reports

12.  City Attorney Reports

13.  Miscellaneous

14.  Adjournment  - The next meeting of the City Council is Thursday, August 12, 2021.

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/979722/06.10.2021_Sp_City_Council_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/979720/06.10.2021_City_Council_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/979721/06.18.2021_City_Council_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/984523/Birdies_for_Hope_-_Gambling_Request.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/983776/Proposed_Building_Permit_refund_form.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/984600/Resolution_1426_Approving_16_Cherrywood_Circle_CUP.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/986148/Island_Field_Council_Packet_7.8.2021.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/985204/Night_to_Unite_Proclamation_2021.pdf


North Oaks City Council 

Special Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 

June 10, 2021 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Ries called the special meeting to order on June 10, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

City Councilmembers participated in the Council Chambers or by telephone or other electronic 

means pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 13D.021. Residents can view the meeting on our cable access 

channel and through the website portal just like other public meetings.   

 

Present: Mayor Kara Ries. Councilmembers Rich Dujmovic, Jim Hara, Tom Watson  

Absent: Sara Shah 

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, City Planner Bob Kirmis, Attorney Jim Thompson, 

Engineer Tim Korby, Engineer John Morast 

Others Present: North Oaks Company President Mark Houge 

A quorum was declared present.  

 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

Mayor Ries said the purpose of tonight’s special meeting is to give extra time to discuss the 

Anderson Woods final plat/plan and have an open discussion with the Council and the new City 

Attorney Jim Thompson from Kennedy and Graven.  

 

MOTION by Hara, seconded by Watson, to approve the Agenda as amended. Motion 

carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

4. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

Kress noted he received a letter from Member Shah a couple minutes ago and asked him to read 

it into the record.   

 

Dear Kevin, Another Special Meeting of the City Council is scheduled to be held on June 

10, 2021 commencing at 6:00 p.m. Prior to the scheduling of the meeting, I specifically 

noted both you and Mayor Ries that I was generally available for any other special 

meeting date and time except at that specific date and time.  Please read this letter into 

the record for that meeting.  I object to the special meeting where the two topics 

identified are vague, the notice does not identify any specific issues or actions that might 

be taken.  I also express great concern that these topics cannot be addressed at the 7:00 

p.m. general meeting where all Councilmembers would be present.  Thank you.  Sincerely 

yours, Sara Shah 

 

Kress noted there were many discussions between Mayor Ries and Attorney Thompson who had 

a couple of conflicts this week.  Initially they were looking for a Tuesday or Wednesday timeline 

which would not work for Mr. Thompson so they moved on to Thursday, they knew there would 

3



Minutes of the Special Council Meeting  June 10, 2021

  
 

P a g e  | 2 

be a quorum, and went forward with the meeting.  He spoke with both parties about the calling of 

the meeting and it is okay if one cannot make a meeting, whether on the City Council or 

Planning Commission.   

 

Mayor Ries also spoke with Member Shah and apologized for the meeting.  Unfortunately, with 

the new Attorney’s schedule this was the only day he had available.  She noted they are up 

against a deadline for final plan approval and this was the only opportunity.  She recommends 

that Councilmembers leave the time before meetings flexible and not to schedule anything right 

before a City Council meeting.   

 

4a. Discussion on Anderson Woods Final Plat/Plan  

Kress noted this is a 9-lot single family residential development on Site F which is just south of 

Wilkinson Villas 1A, and is about a 36-acre site.  City Council did preliminary approvals in June 

of 2020 and City Staff and consultants reviewed the final plat and plan through February, March, 

and April and now the final application is in front of the Council.   

 

Mayor Ries stated this is almost like a second part of Anderson Woods; the original 1999 

agreement had designated this area as one area with 10 units allotted.  The North Oaks Company 

(NOC) has chosen to split the area into two separate developments and the 4 villas that have 

already been platted are part of what she considers the Wilkinson “extension.”   

 

Kress showed the resolution on screen and said it calls out the PDA requirements for principal 

structures including wetlands, ordinary high water level to Wilkinson Lake, floor area ratios 

(FAR), final trails to be developed with NOHOA, proposed monument sign, verifications from 

Ramsey County for permitting in the right-of-way, contacting the fire marshal, and general fire 

lanes and turnarounds, no parking signs, final construction plans, pavement designs, sewer and 

water locations, storm water management, geo-tech reports, drain tile systems, ditching, final 

grading and construction plans, and other requirements.  

 

Engineer Korby noted John Morast is also with him today and has conducted a very thorough 

development review of 122 comments.  He asked Mr. Morast to go through some of the critical 

comments today.  They have reviewed these with the NOC and his guess is they are making the 

changes right now and will present those revised plans to the City within the next week.  

 

Mr. Morast noted on Sheet 3 a general note is that they have expanded the storm easement to 

ensure access and maintenance from the road easement to the ponds and storm water facilities.  

On Sheet 4, the grading plan, comment 32 and 33 noted that the walkout elevations on Lot 5 

were lower than the pond high water level and to make sure that is addressed.   

 

Council discussed trail location, NOHOA’s potential approval, and possible alternate trail 

locations that may decrease trespassing.   

 

Mark Houge, North Oaks Company President, stated his recollection is they have not received 

anything from the City or City Engineer regarding a request to address the trail location; they had 

lengthy conversations with NOHOA Staff and the Board at the time the preliminary plan was 

approved and it was the opinion of NOHOA’s representatives that this trail should remain, as 

4



Minutes of the Special Council Meeting  June 10, 2021

  
 

P a g e  | 3 

west is an old farm road and they saw benefit in having it there.  He noted they can look at 

changing the configuration but clarified this is in response to what the Planning Commission, 

NOHOA, and the prior City Council thought was the best location.   

 

The Council discussed Phase 1 of Anderson Woods and that originally there were 5 lots.  One 

was removed due to a hammerhead turnaround rather than a full cul-de-sac.  They also spoke 

about lot layouts, buildability, and location, including woods, tree coverage, wetlands, and 

potential headlight issues and layout of house location on some of the lots, as well as the 

nearness to Centerville Road of Lot I.   

 

Mr. Morast continued his report on Sheet 4A which is the Final Erosion Control; there was a 

potential in the design for things to get clogged and he wants to clarify and change those.  On 

Sheet 5 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main plans, the three force main pipes coming up from the 

cul-de-sac are actually in the road and crossing property lines, and he wants to clarify easements, 

ownership, and who is responsible for what, as well as provide some separation for the service 

lines.  Regarding storm water plans, they suggest having a sump to keep sediment out and keep it 

at a little bit higher level of water quality.   

 

The Council discussed snow removal and snow storage along the road.  

 

Engineer Korby noted Vadnais Lakes Area Water Management Organization (VLAWMO) looks 

at hydraulics to make sure all pipes and ponds work, setback, wetlands, and did not have many 

comments on Anderson Woods noting they had more comments on Nord.   

 

The Council discussed the wetland crossing, as well as VLAWMO’s standards, and that the 

Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) signed off on the plans.   

 

Mayor Ries asked about the amount of wetland fill that went into creating the land bridge to 

traverse the wetland and what documents were sent to VLAWMO disclosing that amount of fill. 

 

Mr. Houge noted in addition to the drawings they provided soils engineering recommendations 

from American Engineering and Testing to make sure the site slopes of the crossing were done to 

everyone’s satisfaction.  He noted it is designed as a 7-ton road. 

 

The Council continued the discussion on the land bridge and the amount of fill required, erosion 

control, VLAWMO, and roads. 

 

Engineer Korby has been vocal to all parties that he does not like the land bridge idea and a 

better, more sound alternative is some sort of decorative, arched culvert.  An arched culvert 

would reduce the amount of wetland fill, would allow the wetlands to flow back-and-forth, and 

would also be more decorative and sound as it would be a structure.  That would still be his 

vision for this and he has been vocal about it for this project as well as Island Field.  

 

Mr. Houge stated the delineation was done before the design, they looked at putting a culvert in 

there and after lengthy discussions with VLAWMO and others, including the City Engineer, it 

was agreed that it was best to do it this way as it had no impact on the wetland.  The water flows 

5



Minutes of the Special Council Meeting  June 10, 2021

  
 

P a g e  | 4 

in both directions north and south and the problem with the culvert is that it would preclude 

NOC from getting utilities through there which may then have a more significant impact on the 

topography and trees in E, F, and G requiring septic systems.  In the end, it was the City 

Engineer’s and NOHOA’s Engineer’s opinion that this was a good solution, better than 

traversing over 1,200 feet along the conservation area along the old farm road.   

 

Mayor Ries’ concern is that the Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) disclosed a 

substantially less amount of fill in this area.  Now they have the environmental engineer on staff 

that can help to review the area, utilities, and disturbance to the environmental impact.  It is a 

beneficial time to be working with Engineer Korby to provide that environmental look at the 

design.   

 

Watson shared some comments and verbiage adjustments he would like to see in the document. 

 

4b. Discussion on 1999 PUD/PDA development agreements 

 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Ries noted they would continue the discussion at the regular Council meeting and called 

for adjournment. 

 

Watson moved, Hara seconded to adjourn the meeting at 7:00 p.m. Motion carried 

unanimously by roll call. 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Kara Ries, Mayor  

 

Date approved____________ 

 

6



North Oaks City Council 

Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 

June 10, 2021 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Ries called the meeting to order on June 10, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

City Councilmembers participated in the City Chambers or by telephone or other electronic 

means pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 13D.021. Residents can view the meeting on our cable access 

channel and through the website portal just like other public meetings.  

 

Present: Mayor Kara Ries. Councilmembers Rich Dujmovic, Jim Hara, Sara Shah, Tom Watson  

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, Attorney Jim Thompson, Engineer Tim Korby, 

Engineer John Morast 

Others Present: Deputy Mike Burrell, North Oaks Company President Mark Houge, NOHOA 

Executive Direction Mikeya Griffin, NOHOA Board President JoAnn Hanson, Kristi Elfering, 

Elfering and Consultants. 

A quorum was declared present.  

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor Ries led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

4. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

There were no public comments. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Administrator Kress asked to move up 9b) golf course discussion and 9a) audit to after item 7) 

Deputy Burrell’s report.  

 

Councilor Watson noted they can remove 9f) VLAWMO Report and he will just make a brief 

report on that item. He also noted under the Consent Agenda, they can remove item 6h) Waddle 

Contract and he will give a report on that.  

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Shah, to approve the Agenda as amended. Motion 

carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

6a. Approval of Licenses: Arborist - Rainbow Tree Care. Mechanical: Anderson 

Heating, LLC; Countryside Heating and Cooling Solutions 

6b. Approval of Financials for May 2021 

Check #: 13994-14024; EFTs: #433-441 

6c. Approval of Special City Council meeting minutes of April 21, 2021 - Anderson 

Woods 6 p.m. 

7



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 10, 2021

  
 

P a g e  | 2 

6d. Approval of Special and Regular City Council meeting minutes of May 13, 2021 

- (2 Versions for discussion) 

6e. Approval of Temporary Liquor License - NOHOA Summer event 

6f. Consider resolution amending annual appointments/responsibilities 

6g. Approve legal services contract Kennedy & Graven 

6h. Approval of Waddle Recycling Contract 

This item was removed from the Consent Agenda. 

 

Administrator Kress said for item 6d, he would pose the question to the Council which set of 

minutes they would like to formally adopt as there are two different kinds represented: one is an 

action-related format and the other is a longer version. Whatever version the Council picks 

tonight he will put on the upcoming Council agendas.  

 

The Council discussed the minute-taking format.  While some Councilmembers preferred the 

action minutes, others noted many residents do not have the context and would benefit from the 

longer version and the extra clarity in the discussion. The Council decided to go with the longer 

version of the minute taking format, between 5-10 pages maximum.  

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Shah, to approve the Consent Agenda as modified on 6d 

and removing 6h. Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

7. PETITIONS, REQUESTS & COMMUNICATIONS  

 

a. Deputy Mike Burrell Report [00:15:30] 

Deputy Burrell shared that the past month has been fairly uneventful and noted they did a traffic 

enforcement detail the week of the May 17th with some focus areas and approximately 11-12 

tickets were issued. The most frequent complaint-spots were addressed including West Pleasant 

Lake Road near the Rec Center, East Pleasant by the Pump House, North Oaks Road, East Oaks 

Road, Rapp Farms, Charley Lake development, Raven Road, and others. He has also had several 

traffic stops and tickets since that time. He noted some traffic accidents, fishing tickets, and that 

North Oaks has not seen an uptick in crime reports like some other areas. He stated that 

resident’s doorbell cameras can help identify criminals within North Oaks. 

 

Mayor Ries wonders if they can contact some of the doorbell companies and see if they can get a 

bulk, discounted rate to help encourage residents to purchase.  

 

Councilor Shah agreed and suggested hosting an educational meeting with NOHOA on options, 

installation, perks, and the benefits of those security cameras.   

 

Councilor Watson appreciates the follow up on the speeding discussion they had a month ago 

and asked the tolerance being allowed before issuing citations. 

 

Deputy Burrell replied it is typically 40 mph or 10 mph over the speed limit. 

 

Councilor Dujmovic reminded the community to be careful in the dark, wear vests, have 

reflective materials on, and keep an eye out.  

8



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 10, 2021

  
 

P a g e  | 3 

Deputy Burrell noted it is against the law at night to not have a light on if you are biking.  

 

9b. Discussion and possible action on North Oaks Golf Club sewer project [00:32:00] 

 

Phil Anderson of the North Oaks Golf Club updated the Council on connecting to City sewer and 

gave a presentation including environmental and community concerns, sewer design, care and 

maintenance of the system, ownership, and partnerships. He noted the septic system was built in 

1976 and they are proposing removal of the largest septic field in North Oaks.  

 

Engineer Korby noted comments and changes after working with the Golf Club. He thinks this is 

a very good project and is best for the environment because if they can eliminate the largest 

septic system drain field in the City that is a good thing. He stated everyone involved in this 

project, including Shoreview, is in favor of the project. He stated they will be out on the 

construction site periodically making sure things are done properly.  

 

Mayor Ries wants some of Engineer Korby’s comments about the pump on public record. She 

stated the system right now is planned with a single pump and Engineer Korby recommended a 

second pump in case the first pump backs up or has issues.  

 

Engineer Korby noted it is always nice to have a back-up pump on hand so if there is ever an 

emergency, they can switch out the pumps in a matter of an hour instead of waiting for a pump to 

be shipped in. He noted this would apply to all of the lift stations in the City. 

 

Mayor Ries asked if there are any points along the route where public access would need to be 

granted for servicing as she wants to maintain privacy in North Oaks.  

 

Engineer Korby thinks the only access points needed would be the two far ends; one is at the 

Golf Course and the other in public right-of-way on the west side. He thinks there is adequate 

access to get into the system if and when they would need to. The inspectors would not need to 

come across any properties to inspect which is an advantage of directional boring. Most people 

will not even know the construction is occurring because there will only be a few open pits.  

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Dujmovic, to approve the replacement of the North 

Oaks Golf Club existing septic system with a connection to City Sewer (Shoreview 

Interceptor) and to authorize Administrator Kress and Engineer Korby to work with the 

Met Council and the Golf Club to complete the documentation. Motion carried 

unanimously by roll call vote.  

 

9a. 2020 AUDIT PRESENTATION [00:51:25] 

 

Justin Nilson from Abdo, Eick, and Meyers gave a presentation on screen including the 

Auditor’s Opinion, General Fund Results, other Governmental Funds, Enterprise Fund, and Key 

Performance Indicators.  

 

The Council clarified with questions and discussed various elements of the presentation. 

 

9



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 10, 2021

  
 

P a g e  | 4 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Dujmovic, to accept the 2020 Audit Report. Motion 

carried unanimously by roll call vote. 

 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 

8a. Report on NOHOA/NOC progress on Nord Parcel matters following 60-day extension 

[01:11:30] 

 

Councilor Watson noted there is communication from Mark Houge at the North Oaks Company 

(NOC) and with JoAnn Hanson, North Oaks Home Owners’ Association (NOHOA) Board 

President indicating they have met a number of times and have not found a happy meeting 

ground yet but they are working at it. Watson suggests advancing the matter for another 60 days. 

In discussion with Attorney Thompson, the fact that progress with the two other parties is 

happening, in encouraging them to move it along and using some persuasion, the City Council is 

not crossing into areas where they do not belong. He noted things are at a stalemate until the 

parties decide what to do.  

 

The Council discussed how to move the project along as it is at a standstill; it was noted that the 

Council is willing to participate and help in any way they can. 

 

Mayor Ries asked Engineer Korby’s perspective on the site. 

 

Engineer Korby noted it is a pretty wet site and in looking at individual lots and wetlands, in 

some cases the wetlands are higher than where he believes the basements will be. One concern is 

how many basements can they have out there, especially on lots 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 9, and 12; although 

the lots and pads can be developed, he does not think they can put in basements. He noted they 

do not have the final basement elevations yet. He spoke with the developer the previous day 

about some hydraulics that need to be recalculated. Mr. Korby, Administrator Kress, and the 

NOC are having weekly meetings every Wednesday at 2:00 p.m. to go through the lists, items, 

and concerns.  

 

The Council continued the discussion. Mayor Ries asked Attorney Thompson for his thoughts. 

 

Attorney Thompson stated the Council has given final approval to the Nord Plat, it has been 

recorded, and he went back and looked at the minutes of the meeting where the motion was made 

to continue the discussion with a report in 60 days. His understanding is that it is more like a 

progress report to the Council and perhaps they could assist in some way to help the parties work 

through the issues. If the Council wants to make another benchmark 60 days out for a report, he 

thinks that is an action they can take.  

 

Mark Houge, North Oaks Company President, shared that they suspended work at Nord largely 

because of the winter conditions and load limits and they are preparing to resume work 

immediately on the storm sewer and street installation. As Mr. Korby noted they are looking 

forward to a pre-construction meeting the following week to review any last details. He 

reiterated that the Company’s engineers have done a thorough review of all watershed and water-

related issues and the Company is confident that the engineers designed a great project, noting 

10



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 10, 2021

  
 

P a g e  | 5 

that the previous City Engineer acknowledged that by its review and approval, as well as the 

Planning Commission, and City Council. They look forward to final review with Engineer Korby 

as they begin construction of the street and Mr. Houge trusts they will be back soon after 

resolving issues with NOHOA. He shared that the proposed street name is Sherwood Trail and 

the development name will be East Preserve.  

 

The Council decided to revisit the item for an update at the August meeting, including the street 

name.  

 

9. NEW BUSINESS  

 

9c. Consider approval of application for final plan/plat/subdivision for the Anderson 

Woods Development Site (Site F of the 1999 East Oaks PDA as well as adjacent parcels as 

shown on the previously-submitted preliminary plans legally described as Tract G, 

REGISTERED LAND SURVEY NO. 633, RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA) including 

approval of related development contract [01:38:40] 

 

Mayor Ries noted a special meeting earlier in the day and that Mr. Kress had read Councilor 

Shah’s letter into the record.  

 

City Planner Kirmis gave an overview of the site and said at the June 11, 2020 meeting the 

Council considered and approved the preliminary plan for the Anderson Woods subdivision 

consisting of 9 single family lots. At this time, the NOC has requested final plan/plat approval of 

the subdivision which overlays 36 acres of land on Site F of the East Oaks PDA area including a 

centrally-located wetland. He walked through zoning, municipal sewer and water, as well as 

street, lot, and trail configurations. Conditions of approval are included and the Building Official 

will have that as a reference.  

 

Engineer Korby updated the Council that there are about 122 comments and he has been working 

with the NOC to get those changes made.  

 

Engineer Morast shared highlighted visuals on screen and walked the Council through plan 

sheets. He spoke about high-level comments on grading plans, basement elevations being a bit 

lower than the basin, the land bridge/wetland area, erosion control, water main, storm sewer, 

street plans, and landscape plans.   

 

Councilor Hara asked who owns and is responsible for the infrastructure (sanitary sewer, water, 

storm water) going below the road. 

 

Administrator Kress replied the Company is responsible.  

 

Councilor Hara asked as the Company phases out of owning land in the development, what are 

the financial requirements to support that down the road, is there an escrow fund set up for it? 

 

Mark Houge replied in the past the Company collected those utility fees and then worked with 

prior Councils and Staff to make the billing process a part of the City’s work. In both cases they 

11



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 10, 2021

  
 

P a g e  | 6 

collect and replace reserves as a part of that fee, and works closely with White Bear Township 

who maintains those.  The three parties have tried to arrive at a reasonable amount of money to 

collect each time residents are billed for their services so those future maintenance costs are 

covered with those replacement reserves. 

 

Councilor Hara clarified if he buys a lot in Anderson Woods, he is allocated a specific fee which 

is someone’s estimate of what it might cost in 10-15 years or annually to deal with the storm 

water, sewer, and water. He asked if that is how that works because he has not seen it coming out 

of any general City or NOHOA fund.  

 

Mr. Houge answered it is not included in NOHOA fees. It is embedded in fees for utility charges 

and the intent is to look out in to the future and try to accommodate maintenance and long-term 

issues. 

 

Councilor Hara asked where that fee is and if he is paying part of that fee. Speaking for all of the 

people in North Oaks that built or bought a house that had a well and put a septic in and maintain 

those, he is not certain that those people would also want to ante-up for those that did not buy a 

well or put a septic system in.  He noted the potential liability that lies ahead of replacing and 

maintaining those facilities.  

 

Administrator Kress noted the only time one would see the fee is if they were billed by White 

Bear Township or the City of Shoreview, and one would only see that as part of a turnover to the 

City because until that time the Company owns the line system. With Anderson Woods, the City 

does not have any responsibility to that line until such time that it takes it over if it decides to do 

so.  

 

Councilor Hara asked if the City has taken these over in any of the other developments. 

 

Administrator Kress replied the City has taken over several line sets in the past which is part of 

the reason they asked Engineer Korby to give a proposal on utilities to see how many systems 

they do own and what the reserve balances are for those. To answer the original question, no, 

individual residents living in the center of the City are not paying for utility, maintenance, and 

upkeep for those that are on the White Bear Township or Shoreview systems.  

 

The Council continued discussion about the lots, basement elevations, road noise, and privacy, 

and what a preliminary approval actually is.  

 

Attorney Thompson noted some points that came up during the Special Meeting that he would 

like to discuss. There were some questions on the preliminary plat approval and many of those 

are engineering related and planning related; however, there is a condition in the resolution for 

the final plat approval stating that all conditions in the preliminary plat must also be met. Mr. 

Thompson stated the final plat must be in compliance with the conditions in the preliminary plat 

and in the applicable City’s regulation. The Council is not acting on a clean slate tonight, there is 

a preliminary plat approval and that is not to say if something is not compliant, they are obligated 

to approve it. He clarified that simply because a final plat is the last stage in the planning process 

and creation of the lot process, that does not mean that there are not other approvals that need to 

12



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 10, 2021

  
 

P a g e  | 7 

be given such as building permits or wetland regulations, and the plat does not approve those.  

Attorney Thompson said when the developer or builder comes in for those approvals, the 

applicable code provisions need to be complied with at that time.  

 

Mayor Ries asked if there are remedial measures if something is considered to be incorrect or if 

correct information was not provided to the City. 

 

Attorney Thompson replied the remedy has to be tied to what the application is and if it is 

compliant. For example, if a builder came in and built a house that violates setbacks or a water 

management plan, there are remedies clearly associated with that. They are not remedies tied to 

the plat but are tied to future approvals. He noted the final date to act formally on the approval is 

June 18, 2021. 

 

The Council discussed other elements, including the water loop line, final approval date, and the 

NOC and NOHOA working together.  

 

Mayor Ries stated they could call a special meeting to allow Mr. Thompson time to review these 

things and report back.  

 

Councilor Watson noted if June 11, 2020 was the original date and it is one year later, would the 

final date be June 11, 2021? He would rather see the extra week and get some of these matters 

nailed down because he wants to avoid creating a “Nord 2.” 

 

Mr. Houge noted a letter from NOHOA dated April 2, 2020 where they talk about their review of 

the Anderson Woods development. He has not seen the resolution that Attorney Thompson 

spoke about and cannot agree to conditions of final plan approval having not had a chance to 

review those. Mr. Houge stated they went through the list of 122 engineering comments and 

there was one comment about potentially putting an island in the entrance for a turnaround which 

is the one thing they probably cannot accommodate at this time; he clarified early in the 

preliminary plan approval they had an island there and NOHOA asked them to remove it. They 

will surely address the question of basement elevation at the time of a building permit 

application. He believes they are comfortable with the engineering review and would like to 

move forward with the project.  

 

Councilor Dujmovic asked regarding the alternative Engineer Korby mentioned to bringing in a 

bunch of fill that may allow the wetlands to be connected rather than separated by fill is there 

any willingness on the NOC’s part to entertain that option? 

 

Mr. Houge replied the NOC looked at many options and he is not 100% clear what Mr. Korby is 

referring to. They brought in fill because it was required by the soils engineer to make sure they 

had proper compaction and slope stabilization. The grades seen out there today were set up at an 

elevation to accommodate the least amount of disruption to the existing topography on the lots. 

There is a pile of dirt on the west side that is the excess granular material which was replaced by 

the materials required by the soils engineer to create that crossing. They also had lengthy 

discussions with VLAWMO on the pros and cons of a culvert under the crossing and they agreed 

13



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 10, 2021

  
 

P a g e  | 8 

that based on how the water moves on either side of it, it was not necessary and enabled NOC to 

put the utilities across to those westerly lots.  

Mayor Ries noted it is getting late and they have the option to continue the meeting on June 18. 

She noted Attorney Thompson and Engineer Korby have some issues to look at and they can 

have that meeting after allowing them to collect more of the information.  

 

The Council agreed to meet the following week to clarify some of the outstanding questions, 

including the culvert and utilities, the maintenance costs, trail access, the resolution, the major 

engineering items, the basement elevation issue, the NOHOA April 2, 2020 approval of 

Anderson Woods, and the loop water. 

 

Mayor Ries noted on record that they will keep this item open and will have a meeting on Friday, 

June 18 at 4:00 p.m.  

 

9d. Consider North Oaks Company request for preliminary grading on Island Field 

[02:44:00] 

 

Administrator Kress clarified the City received the materials on a Friday after the Thursday 

Council meeting and since then received some geo reports and other information that is helpful 

for the connection piece. Whether the site is developed or not, they will still need access to the 

site and that is what this request is for, there is not additional grading of any streets, it is quite 

literally the grading of the entrance to Island Field.  

 

Mayor Ries noted the City Council did not ignore a request for grading, it was simply that they 

did not have the correct documentation required in order for the Council to consider it at their 

last meeting.  

 

After discussion, the Council decided to continue items 9c, 9d, and the rest of the agenda items 

until the June 18, 2021 meeting.  

 

9e. Proposed Change to Building Permit Refund form 

 

9f. Report on VLAWMO/NOC Wilkinson CWA 319 meander project 

 

9g. Discussion on Wetland Protection Ordinance from City of Minnetonka 

 

10. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS  

 

11. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS 

 

12. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS  

 

13. MISCELLANEOUS  

a. May 2021 Forester Report 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT 

14



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 10, 2021

  
 

P a g e  | 9 

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to continue agenda items 9c through 13 until 

Friday, June 18 at 4:00 p.m. Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote.  

Meeting adjourned at 9:53 p.m.  

 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Kara Ries, Mayor  

 

Date approved____________ 

 

15



North Oaks City Council 
Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 
June 18, 2021 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Ries called the special meeting to order on June 18, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
City Councilmembers participated by telephone or other electronic means pursuant to Minn. 
Stat. § 13D.021. Residents can view the meeting on our cable access channel and through the 
website portal just like other public meetings.  
Present: Mayor Kara Ries. Councilmembers Rich Dujmovic, Jim Hara, Sara Shah, Tom Watson  
Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, Attorney Jim Thompson, Engineer Tim Korby 
Others Present: North Oaks Company President Mark Houge, North Oaks Company Attorney 
Tom Bray 
A quorum was declared present.  
 
Mayor Ries noted due to the late hour of the previous meeting, the Council decided to recess and 
reconvene to continue the discussion at this date and time. They are discussing the Anderson 
Woods final plan approval.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
9c.  Consider approval of application for final plan/plat/subdivision for the Anderson 
Woods Development Site (Site F of the 1999 East Oaks PDA as well as adjacent parcels as 
shown on the previously-submitted preliminary plans legally described as Tract G, 
REGISTERED LAND SURVEY NO. 633, RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA) including 
approval of related development contract 
 
Mayor Ries noted some things stated on record that she wants to clarify that after some 
discussion with Attorney Thompson. In the discussion on some of the preliminary plans and 
moving into final stage approval there has been a lot of discussion on Vadnais Lakes Area Water 
Management Organization’s (VLAWMO) role in all of this; in conversations with Al Fiori and 
Brian Corcoran, they are not in the business of approving planning or development plans. They 
simply look at the wetland conservation act and that is really their only jurisdiction. It is the 
City’s obligation to review this within the ordinances and contractual obligations (the PDA) and 
look at issues in regard to health, general welfare, and safety. The City Council needs to be sure 
they are being compliant with their own ordinances, with the PDA, and with the current zoning 
and land use. She noted it has been stated incorrectly on the record that “VLAWMO approved 
this” and the Council must look at the compliance of each of these applications and whether they 
are fulfilling their obligation in following the PDA. Mayor Ries said there has been a lot of 
discussion about being in the final plan phase and that there is nothing they can do; they also 
have the obligation of the PDA which requires and often trumps what the ordinances say. She 
opened the discussion.  

16



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 18, 2021
  
 

P a g e  | 2 

Engineer Korby has done some analysis and has come up with additional options for the water 
main and the land bridge. Regarding the water main, Option A right now is designed with two 
separate water mains going down the middle of the road and the purpose is to have some sort of 
a loop on Pond View Trail, which he will call a “pseudo-loop.” Option B would be to get rid of 
one of the pipes on Pond View Trail and extend it to the north, hook up the 4 additional homes 
for the “villas” and the hook up to the existing water system further to the north which would be 
a true loop with water crossing on two different points on Centerville Road. He noted it is very 
expensive which is about $200,000 (estimated) to extend it further to the north, hook up those 4 
lots and connect to the system to the north. Option C would also be a true loop and instead of 
crossing at the same spot on Centerville Road they could cross a few hundred feet down the road, 
bring it in between lots 6 and 7 or 7 and 8 and come in on the north side of the cul-de-sac. 
Engineer Korby would push to have a true loop as it is good for the health and safety of the 
residents on North Oaks.  
 
North Oaks Company President Mark Houge noted one thing not considered in those costs is 
right-of-way acquisition and the fact that the Company has already sold those 4 lots and one has 
already installed a well and paid for it. The other 3 are under contract with the understanding that 
they would be putting in a well and the nearest water line is in Osprey Court and they are all on a 
loop. He noted they do not see it as a viable option to go up to the Villas of Wilkinson Lake.  
 
Engineer Korby noted there are cases where a resident has a well and can use it for irrigation 
purposes and then City water is for drinking purposes.  
 
Councilor Shah asked Attorney Thompson if the City has the authority to ask the applicant to 
extend the utilities like this?  
 
Attorney Thompson asked Mr. Korby what the engineering plans that were part of the approval 
of the preliminary plat/plan showed with respect to the water. 
 
Engineer Korby replied they showed the double barrel with two pipes going down the road.  
 
Attorney Thompson sees two legal issues. First, the statute says that the obligation of the Council 
is to approve a final plat if it complies with the conditions in the preliminary plat resolution and 
any applicable requirements. This is a legal issue if the Council were to mandate a change in 
what was approved at the preliminary plat stage. A second issue is that the four lots to the north 
are not part of this development; granted they were done by the same developer but 
hypothetically if it was a different developer, they would not have any authority to make that 
developer do something different than when it was approved. There are two legal hurdles he 
sees. He noted the developer can agree and they can negotiate something to do one of the other 
two options that Engineer Korby suggests, but legally, the Council is in a tough situation 
demanding it.  
 
Mayor Ries stated the City has the right to enforce health, safety, and general welfare and 
maintaining water quality in that area would be an issue. She asked if that is correct, generally 
speaking. 
 

17



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 18, 2021
  
 

P a g e  | 3 

Attorney Thompson replied yes.  
 
Mayor Ries noted the City has the right be enforcing consistent water quality. Also, if something 
was incorrect or falsely stated on the record prior, the City has the right to go in and review that 
fact and asked if that is correct. 
 
Attorney Thompson replied yes, that is correct. He clarified if it is a misstatement relating to a 
previous development that has already been approved it is difficult as to how they would enforce 
that.  
 
Mayor Ries stated during approval of those four plats there was discussion about looping in the 
water – she asked if the City can retroactively connect these homes to water and do they have 
that authority. 
 
Attorney Thompson replied generally, yes, the City does have that authority, for example when a 
road is built and rebuilt and if they extend sanitary sewer and water the City can require that the 
property owners hook up in a specified period of time. He stated many cities do that in a way that 
does not jeopardize the homeowners, if they have a brand-new septic system or well, they are 
given time. 
 
The Council discussed the previous City Council and Planning Commission’s decisions 
regarding looping the water.  
 
Mr. Houge reminded the Council that the reason they have the design with the two lines running 
parallel in the street was a request by White Bear Township to maintain water quality. In terms 
of health and safety it is the exactly the same in terms of water quality whether the line runs up 
and down Pond View Trail or is connected at a point north on Centerville Road. It is going to tap 
into the same 16-inch line and the water flow is the issue, not the proximity of the connections to 
the water line. He clarified to suggest that it saves the City money to eliminate that line is 
incorrect as the Company is paying for the line either way. If the City wants to put in a new line 
and assess the owners on the Villas, that would be their option but it would come at an additional 
expense to the City and those homeowners.  
 
The Council continued the discussion of the water line options and who would potentially cover 
the expense of hooking up the water. They then moved on to a discussion regarding the location 
of the trail access and NOHOA, including safety and security in the trail head being close to the 
entrance of the City.  
 
Engineer Korby noted there are 122 engineering comments and they are working through those 
with the Company. Regarding the land bridge, other options include a concrete arched culvert 
and a corrugated metal arched culvert. The advantages environmentally are cutting the wetland 
impact in half, reconnecting the wetland sides – although both VLAWMO and HR Green’s 
engineers have said the water can flow from both directions in somewhat of a loop. Perhaps the 
most important is reconnecting the wildlife as these culverts for turtle and wildlife crossings. The 
disadvantage is the expense and it is estimated to be as much as $500,000 extra to put in some 
sort of a real bridge, and that is something the Council would have to discuss and decide on. He 

18



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 18, 2021
  
 

P a g e  | 4 

showed a picture on screen of what a culvert could look like. He noted it was mentioned in 
NOHOA’s letter that they are not in favor of going away from the land bridge due to the 
maintenance as at some point in the future a culvert goes bad.  
 
Mr. Houge noted the entire land bridge has been built, it is completely done, and is ready for 
gravel base and paving.  
 
Mayor Ries thinks it is important for Mr. Korby to review it for structural integrity, erosion, 
sloping, runoff, and other impact, as at one point, NOHOA had comments and concerns. 
Resolution 1391 that only approved grading and denied storm water collection, utilities, and 
putting in the road. She would like Engineer Korby to review this. 
 
Mr. Houge stated the City has had an engineer looking at this project for over a year, has done a 
thorough review, and just because there is a new engineer it does not discount the fact that the 
previous engineer did a thorough review of all of the design to the get them to the point they are 
at. In addition, there have been numerous on-site meetings coordinated with a soils engineer, 
records of the compaction, and everything was done exactly to the specification requested by the 
City Engineer at the time, the rip rap is a slope that is designed to be maintained, there are no 
retaining walls required. The ponds were not constructed other than the grading of the area that 
creates the pond. No work has been done by the Company that exceeds the authority given by the 
City to do grading.  
 
Mayor Ries anticipated those comments and asked Kress to send her any documentation on the 
engineered documents of the bride; the only thing they had was a wetland impact that was 
submitted to VLAWMO for their review, there was no actual grading or design work submitted 
to the City that actually showed this type of land bridge structure and what it entailed. Her 
concern is there is initial grading in the City but they also have ordinance 151.027 which talks 
about land reclamation and is not specific to a point in time. In order to review the ordinance and 
make sure things are being met, those plans, designs, and quantities need to be disclosed.  
 
Councilor Shah noted VLAWMO reviewed the plan and did not raise any issues about the 
current design from an environmental standpoint and the City gave the applicant the grading 
permits in July of 2020. She stated the applicant did not do anything different than what they 
asked for in the preliminary plan and the City they gave them the authority to do that. She does 
not see that they have latitude or authority to change this land access situation as the Company is 
doing exactly what was approved in the concept plan and the preliminary plan. She asked 
Attorney Thompson’s legal opinion.  
 
Mayor Ries wants to clarify two things stated on the record: it was only the initial grading that 
was approved in Resolution 1391 and no permits were ever issued, and second VLAWMO does 
not review plats, environmental wetland tables, they only review the wetland conservation act 
and where the water is impacted. She noted the Planning Commission and previous Council 
would couch everything on the perception that VLAWMO goes into an environmental study. She 
noted there was an EAW done which only anticipated using the existing farm roads and did not 
anticipate this particular road.  

19



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 18, 2021
  
 

P a g e  | 5 

Attorney Thompson said it sounds like the plans for this roadway at the time of preliminary plan 
approval did not include the bridge or culvert option. The answer to the question Councilor Shah 
raised has two legal issues associated with it, first going beyond the boundaries of the plat. He 
stated the Mayor is correct in the sense that a permit was not issued for this grading, there was a 
resolution approved which is what is contemplated in the PDA to allow the preliminary grading 
so that was authorized. He recognizes another provision in the Code on land reclamation and in 
this particular instance he thinks the process was followed that is contemplated by the PDA 
which is a resolution approving the preliminary grading. It appears the grading was done 
pursuant to that authority, though there may be some misunderstanding. His understanding is that 
there were no utilities installed and there was no roadway installed; rather there was just grading 
for the roadway which is what was authorized by that resolution. With respect to whether they 
can change the rules now regarding the road, the answer is the same in that the statute says if 
what they are doing complies with what was approved at the preliminary plat/plan stage, the law 
is they cannot change the rules on that without the consent of the developer.  He noted it is true 
as a Council that they have the authority for health and safety, and for example if there is a health 
and safety concern about where this road hooks up to Centerville Road, the Council has authority 
over that and does not have to approve a road connection that is unsafe. He thinks the same 
principal applies regarding the trail in that if it is an unsafe location the Council has some 
discretion. He pointed out that the preliminary plat resolution for this development says “final 
trail plans be developed in concept with NOHOA Staff (as they will be responsible for 
acceptance and maintenance of the trails).” Attorney Thompson stated the last legal item left is 
the development agreement and they will be working on that; he hopes they will ensure that 
issues that came up in Nord will not come up this time.  
 
The Council discussed the classification of a natural environment lake and how the lots meet the 
minimum ordinance requirements. They spoke about the NOHOA June 6 letter and determined 
the issues raised have been reviewed or are incorporated into the 122 engineering comments. It 
was noted that every item in the memo shows the City’s and NOHOA’s commentary. The 
engineer clarified the grading report, including preliminary grading to final approval standards.  
 
Mr. Houge noted the previous engineer told the Company exactly what they wanted to see to 
approve the project and its construction and that is what the Company followed. At this point, it 
is not appropriate for the City Engineer today (even though they are different) to be reviewing 
the work of the city engineer that was fully capable and reviewed the same item 6 months ago.  
 
Attorney Thompson noted the change in engineers is not an issue, what becomes problematic is 
changing the rules. The rules are: what was approved and in place when the Council approved 
the preliminary plat. A new engineer should be reviewing all of the plans as it is a condition in 
the final plat resolution that is part of the agenda tonight – that final plans need to be revised in 
order to address the engineering comments in the memo dated December 11, 2020. The current 
City Engineer has to comment on those and they have to comply. It does not matter whether 
there is a new engineer or not with respect to what the applicable rules are and those are the rules 
that were in place when the previous Council approved the preliminary plat. The engineer must 
review these plans to make sure they are consistent with the approved plans and the previous 
engineer’s December 11, 2020 memo.  
 

20



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 18, 2021
  
 

P a g e  | 6 

The Council again spoke about the location of the trail, including the conceptual trail layout and 
consistency with the 1999 PDA.  
 
Councilor Watson pointed out number 7 in the resolution and asked does it mean these parcels 
cannot be sold without an agreement on easements with NOHOA. 
 
Attorney Thompson replied yes, that is what it means. The trail easements need to be conveyed 
to NOHOA before conveyance of any of the affected lots.  
 
Mayor Ries gave Attorney Thompson some history and stated the roads are actually easements to 
the Home Owners’ Association just like the trails are.  
 
Attorney Thompson understands that.  He said the answer is yes, this resolution requires a 
development agreement, and that provision will be in the development agreement and was also 
in the Nord agreement.  
 
The Council spoke about escrow requirements, basement elevations (including Gary Eagles’ 
letter from February 24, 2021), walkout basements versus lookout basements and moving cubic 
yards of soil to create a walkout basement.   
 
Attorney Thompson noted that is where the City’s land reclamation ordinance would come into 
effect. If a lot is sold and they want to bring in grading and meet the threshold for a land 
reclamation permit which requires a CUP approved by the City Council, they would have the 
authority to review that at that time if they met the 100 cubic yard threshold.  
 
The Council discussed platting, surface water runoff, drainage, and building codes.  
 
Mr. Houge pointed out the proposed grading plans show proposed elevation for various levels of 
a home on lots 5, 6, and 7 which would be typical. If they are creating lots and doing grading, 
they need to show how the home would be placed. Regarding the six lots that they chose not to 
grade because they wanted to retain the tree, when the homeowner decides what type of home 
they would like to build, those basement elevations will come into play. 
 
The Council discussed code requirements, the development agreement, and slab-on-grade versus 
walkout basements.  
 
Attorney Thompson clarified they can put things in the development agreement that the future 
homeowners cannot come back at the City and say they did not know they could not put in a 
walkout basement but instead can only do a slab-on-grade. He stated they should have known it 
because it was on the title when they purchased the property and noted they would add a few 
more remedies to the development agreement to make sure home owners know about these lots 
whether they have attorneys or not when they buy these lots. 
 
Mayor Ries noted it is the deadline for approval so legally the Council needs to either approve, 
deny, or come to an agreement with Mr. Houge to extend the deadline at this point. She would 

21



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 18, 2021
  
 

P a g e  | 7 

like to try to connect those four houses with water and asked Mr. Houge if he would be willing to 
have that discussion and seeing if it would be possible and looking at the financials.  
 
Mr. Houge said with all due respect, they cannot do that; they built those homes, marketed them 
for sale, and people who have been looking at them were fully apprised that they would be using 
wells and there is no benefit from a health and safety point of view.  
 
Mayor Ries asked Mr. Korby to explain the benefit of the water quality being in a true loop 
rather than parallel pipes. 
 
Mr. Korby explained it would be bringing in water from a different point if there was ever an 
issue, a break, or settlement under the road, it is more reliable for health and safety.  
 
Attorney Thompson explained the resolution prepared which has been reviewed by the 
developer’s attorney and is based primarily on the resolution used for the Nord development 
which approved the final plans subject to further engineer review to make sure they comply with 
the plans that have been approved. It requires the developer to enter into a development 
agreement with the City, the form of which is acceptable to the City, and the developer will 
provide a cash escrow letter of credit, requires the trail easements to be conveyed to NOHOA 
before conveyance of any lots, and carries forward some setback and other requirements in the 
preliminary plat resolution and specifies the name of the street. Attorney Thompson noted this 
resolution covers Tract G of registered Land Survey No. 633 which is the current legal 
description for the nine lots. 
 
The Council discussed adding both engineer memos from the previous and current engineers, as 
well as conveyance of the road to NOHOA. Regarding NOHOA’s trail access opinion, it was 
noted that in North Oaks they do not put those access points near a County road as those can 
become accesses for theft and trespassing. Councilor Watson and Mayor Ries would like to put 
something in the resolution regarding the trail location being revisited to keep consistent with 
other trails in North Oaks.  
 
Councilor Watson would like to see traffic counts and safety matters on that area of Centerville 
Road and would like to see that represented, as well.  
 
Attorney Thompson suggested adding some language such that the Council reserves the right to 
request and provide information to NOHOA regarding traffic safety concerns for their 
consideration.  
 
Mr. Houge objects to adding the HR Green engineer’s letter from May as the Company received 
preliminary approval with the City’s engineering comments at the time and many of the items in 
the HR Green letter are more clean-up items on the drawing and they will clearly take care of 
that. Second, he cannot agree to change the trail location after having worked this issue 
thoroughly with the City and NOHOA previously to come up with an agreement/preference of 
what the Company thought NOHOA wanted.  
 

22



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 18, 2021
  
 

P a g e  | 8 

Councilor Watson clarified he is not asking them to change the trail but rather take into 
consideration some factors that were not considered such as nearby road traffic, a.m./p.m. traffic, 
and truck traffic as he is pretty sure the Company and NOHOA did not take those into 
consideration.  
 
Attorney Thompson stated with respect to adding the other engineering drawings, over the 
objection of the applicant, he does not recommend adding that; they could encourage the 
developer to review those comments and comply with those they can. 
 
Councilor Shah asked Attorney Thompson to summarize the modifications to the resolution.  
 
Attorney Thompson said if a motion is made with a second to adopt this resolution, they can 
clarify to make sure what the terms are. 
 
MOTION by Shah, seconded by Watson, to approve Resolution 1425 the final plat 
subdivision for the Anderson Woods site. [02:38:45] 
 
Attorney Thompson noted number 7 would now read “road and trail easements shall be 
conveyed to NOHOA prior to the conveyance.” A new sentence would be added to paragraph 7 
that says “The City reserves the right to present additional information and comments to 
NOHOA related to the traffic, safety, and security concerns relating to the proposed location of 
the trail.”  
 
Engineer Korby and Attorney Thompson discussed the 122 engineering comments on the plans. 
 
Mr. Houge stated the drawings referred to in the resolution are new plans; there was a set of 
preliminary plans that was approved by a prior Council. These are what the Company is calling 
the final plans and they were instructed to hold off making any changes to these final plans until 
the approval (presumably today) and then they can incorporate comments. Again, he rejects to 
changing that paragraph from reference to the earlier engineer’s comments because that is what 
the approval is based on. He also stated the language should say the “approved” trail rather than 
the “proposed” trail.  
 
Attorney Thompson suggested in paragraph 2 it say “final plans shall be revised to address the 
City’s Engineer’s comments.” 
 
Tom Bray, attorney for the North Oaks Company, thinks the Council is confusing two issues. 
First is the willingness of the NOC to work with the current City Engineer Mr. Korby and take 
his comments into consideration, which Mr. Houge has already indicated the Company is willing 
to do. Second is the City’s legal right to add new conditions at this point in the process by 
requiring compliance with Mr. Korby’s letter which was not a part of the record, preliminary 
approval, or referenced in the resolution of preliminary approval. The Company strongly objects 
to any reference to any engineer comments other than the engineer comments that are 
specifically referenced in the preliminary approval resolution. Beyond that they are adding new 
conditions and simply do not have the right to do that.  
 

23



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 18, 2021
  
 

P a g e  | 9 

Attorney Thompson said the reference right now to the engineer’s memo is dated December 11, 
2020 which did not exist at the time of preliminary plat approval, so by definition, the comments 
have to come after that. He does not think they should get hung up on a date here but thinks it 
should say “final plans shall be revised to address the City’s Engineer’s comments.” He clarified 
if the engineer is commenting on the appropriate plans, then those are appropriate comments.  
 
Attorney Bray noted the Company maintains its objection; the preliminary approval resolution 
required the Company to respond to the City Engineer’s plans and were provided an extensive 
memo and the Company fulfilled its obligation by responding to that.  
 
MOTION by Watson to amend the main motion on Resolution 1425 as presented to add 
the modification to item 2 and delete the reference to the date and insert the words “City 
Engineer” and add the word “comments.” With respect to item 7 to add the word “road 
and trail easements” and include the comment from attorney Thompson that the City 
reserves the right to provide information about traffic safety, security, and road conditions 
to the consideration of this trail. [2:58:00] 
  
Attorney Thompson clarified the amendment to the motion with amendments as follows: the first 
sentence of paragraph 2 would read, “final plans shall be revised to address the City Engineer’s 
comments.” Second, paragraph 7 would be revised to read “road and trail easements” and to 
add another sentence to that paragraph that says “the City Council reserves the right to present 
additional information and comments to NOHOA on traffic, safety, and security issues relating 
to the trail location.” 
 
Watson agrees with Attorney Thompson’s statements as modifications to his motion.  
Dujmovic seconded. Motion carried as Councilmembers Dujmovic, Hara, Ries, and 
Watson voted for; Councilmember Shah voted against. [3:02:30] 
 
Mayor Ries called a vote to approve the Resolution as amended. 
 
Motion carried as Councilmembers Dujmovic, Hara, Ries, and Watson voted for; 
Councilmember Shah voted against. [3:03:00] 
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to table agenda items 9d, 9e, and 9g to the next 
regularly scheduled City Council meeting on July 8, 2021. [3:05:00] 
 
Councilor Shah is disappointed that they cannot get through this material in a more efficient 
manner as she thinks they should attend to City business.  
 
Motion carried as Councilmembers Hara, Ries, and Watson voted for; Councilmembers 
Dujmovic and Shah voted against. 
 
9d. Consider North Oaks Company request for preliminary grading on Island Field 
 
9e. Proposed Change to Building Permit Refund form 
 

24



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  June 18, 2021
  
 

P a g e  | 10 

9g. Discussion on Wetland Protection Ordinance from City of Minnetonka 
 
10. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS  
Councilor Dujmovic sent the Council a report on crime statistics and police data over the last 5 
years and is still working on a script for a video for new residents.  
 
Councilor Hara shared that he spoke with NOHOA Executive Director about weed management 
and it is a NOHOA role rather than the City’s. He agrees with Councilor Shah about attending to 
City business and noted he was charged along with Engineer Korby and Administrator Kress to 
look at the City water rates for those tied into the Shoreview water system. He noted they have 
not had a meeting or conversation about it. He thinks Council and City Staff should be aware that 
they spend so much of their time on developments and there may be some residents who will 
receive a big water bill and would like them to attend to more than just developments.  
 
Councilor Watson had nothing to report but said the meetings would be shorter if they cut the 
politics.  
 
Councilor Shah attended the RCLLG quarterly meeting and the VLAWMO Tech meeting. 
 
Mayor Ries noted June 26, 2021 is Recycling Day. She followed up with the weed comments 
and stated it is a NOHOA issue and there are only two times per year that NOHOA can get a 
permit from the DNR to treat and they must be very cautious because the Department of Health 
may send a letter stating they need to change the process or chemical. Mayor Ries and Councilor 
Watson had a meeting with St. Paul Water and are initiating a joint effort to investigate this and 
look at some possible new ways to address the zebra mussels. 
 
a. 319 Watershed Grants  
 
11. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS 
 
12. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS  
 
13. MISCELLANEOUS  
a. March 2021 Forester Report 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
Watson moved, Dujmovic seconded to adjourn the meeting at 7:15 p.m. Motion carried 
unanimously by roll call. 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Kara Ries, Mayor  
 
Date approved____________ 

25



26



27



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. 1426 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO  

CONSTRUCT A HOME IN EXCESS OF 35 FEET IN HEIGHT FOR PROPERTY 

ADDRESS 16 CHERRYWOOD CIRCLE 

 

 

 WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit has been submitted by 

Ted and Stacie Scott, the owner of the real property described below, to allow for the 

construction of a home in excess of 35 feet in height on real property located at 16 

Cherrywood Circle, North Oaks, Ramsey County, Minnesota, legal described on the 

attached EXHIBIT A; and  

 

 WHEREAS, a Conditional Use Permit is required for a home in excess of 35 feet 

in height; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the request has been reviewed against the relevant requirements of 

North Oaks Zoning Ordinance Sections 151.050 and 151.076, regarding the criteria for 

issuance of a Conditional Use Permit, and meets the minimum standards, is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan, is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance, and does not have 

a negative impact on public health, safety, or welfare; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the Conditional Use Permit was held 

before the North Oaks Planning Commission in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, 

Section 462.357, subd. 3, on June 24, 2021, at which hearing the Planning Commission 

voted unanimously to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit application, 

subject to certain conditions.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF NORTH OAKS, that a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a home in excess of 35 

feet in height, is approved subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The home shall be constructed in accordance to plan sets received 5-27-21.  

2. The proposed home shall meet all required setbacks and other zoning standards 

prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

3. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the beginning of 

construction. 

4. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk, Deputy City Clerk, or City Attorney 

are hereby authorized and directed to record a certified copy of this Resolution with the 

Ramsey County Registrar of Titles. 

 

 

28



 2 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks this 8th day of July, 2021. 

      

 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Kara Ries 

      Its: Mayor 

 

Attested: 

 

 

 

By:  ________________________________  

 Kevin Kress 

Its: City Administrator 

 

 

  

29



 3 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 

Real property located in Ramsey County, Minnesota legally described as follows: 

 

Tract D, Registered Land Survey No. 629, Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

 

 

 

PID: 053022440009 

 

Torrens Property 

 

30



   

  N O R T H W E S T  A S S O C I A T E D  C O N S U L T A N T S ,  I N C .  
                      __________________________________________________________________ 

  4 150  O l so n  Me mo r ia l  H ighw ay ,   S t e .  320 ,   Go lde n  Va l le y ,  MN   554 22  

T e le p ho ne :  7 6 3 .9 5 7 . 1 1 0 0                 W e b s i t e :  w w w . na c p l a nn i n g . c o m  

 

 
 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: North Oaks Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM: Bob Kirmis, City Planner 

 

DATE: July 8, 2021 

 

RE: North Oaks - Island Field Final Plan/Plat 
 
FILE NO: 321.02 - 21.02 
 
 
BACKGROUND 

 

At a special meeting of the North Oaks City Council on December 17, 2020, the Council 

considered and approved (subject to conditions) the Preliminary Plan/Plat (subdivision) 

application of the North Oaks Company for the “Island Field Parcel” located south of the 

“Gate Hill Parcel” along Centerville Road. 

 

The approved Preliminary Plan/Plat calls for the construction of a two-phase, 74-dwelling 

unit condominium building upon two proposed lots.  An included “guest suite” is not 

considered a “dwelling unit” as defined in the North Oaks Zoning Ordinance (as it does 

not include independent cooking facilities). 

 

In addition to the dwelling units and guest suite, the building includes common spaces 

such as a community room and an exercise room.  Outdoor gathering spaces include 

patio decks, walking paths and a community garden. 

 

At this time, the North Oaks Company has requested Final Plan/Plat approval. 

 

As part of the Final Plan/Plat application, the applicant seeks to subdivide the subject site 

into two primary parcels of land, an 11.6-acre southern parcel (Tract A) and a 9.7-acre 

northern parcel (Tract B), along with a parcel to be used for roadway access and 

maintenance.  Phase 1 of the project calls for the construction of a 37-dwelling unit 

condominium building on the southern parcel while Phase 2 of the project calls for the 

construction of a 37-dwelling unit condominium building addition upon the northern parcel.  

Upon construction of phase 2, the condominium buildings will be connected to form one 

contiguous 74-unit building. 

31

http://www.nacplanning.com/


 

2 
 

 

The subject 22-acre property lies within “Site H” as identified in the 1999 East Oaks 

Planned Development Agreement (PDA).   

 

According to the 1999 East Oaks Planned Development Agreement, and subsequently 

amended (PDA), the City’s RCM - PUD, Residential Commercial Mixed zoning district 

provisions apply to the subject property. 

 

The proposed condominium building is planned to be served by municipal sewer and 

water. 

  

Attached for reference: 

 

Exhibit A: Site Location 
Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative 
Exhibit C: Floor Area Ratio (FAR) Calculation 
Exhibit D: Existing Conditions 
Exhibit E: Approved Preliminary Plat/Easement Plan 
Exhibit F: Approved Preliminary Site Plan 
Exhibit G: Final Plat/Plan 
Exhibit H: Final Plat/Easement Plan 
Exhibit I: Final Site Plan 
Exhibit J: Final Grading and Erosion Plan 
Exhibit K: Final Utility Plan 
Exhibit L: Final Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Plans  
Exhibit M: Final Storm Sewer Plan 
Exhibit N: Final Street Plan 
Exhibit O: Final Landscape Plans 
Exhibit P: Building Perspectives 
Exhibit Q: Final Building Elevations 
Exhibit R: DNR Correspondence - (re: Black Lake OHWL Boundary) 

 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

 

Consistency with Approved Preliminary Plan.  Generally speaking, the site plan and 

related building, street and trail configurations illustrated on the Final Plan/Plat are 

consistent with those depicted upon the approved Preliminary Plan/Plat. 

 

In response to the conditions of Preliminary Plan/Plat approval, the configuration of Tract 

A (identified as Parcel 1 on the Preliminary Plan/Plat) has been modified to include the 

entire roadway turnaround area near the entrance to the building.  Specifically, the 

property line change is illustrated on the submitted Final Plat and Final Easement 

drawings. 

 

32



 

3 
 

it is not clear if the lot line which bisects Phase 1 and Phase 2 construction has been 

located such that Phase 1 of the condominium building will maintain a minimum 20-foot 

setback from the adjacent property line to the north.  To ensure compliance with such 

setback, it is recommended that the Final Site Plan (Exhibit I) be modified to illustrate the 

boundaries of Tracts A and B. 

 

Dwelling Unit Count.  The PDA notes that a total of 35 dwelling units are allowed upon 

Site H with a potential 30 percent density bonus.  As a result, a maximum of 46 dwelling 

units are allowed.   At the October 8, 2020, meeting of the City Council, the applicant 

requested a formal determination related to the number of dwelling units which are 

allowed upon the subject site.  In this regard, the applicant expressed its interpretation of 

the East Oaks PDA to allow 74 dwelling units upon the site based on the following 

calculation: 

 

 a. Planned number of dwelling units = 35 

 b. 35 x 30 percent density increase = 45.5 dwelling units 

 c. 45.5 dwelling units is rounded up to 46 units 

  d. 5.73 acres of commercial development converted at a rate of 5 dwelling 

units per full acre of commercial development foregone = 28.65 dwelling 

units 

 e.  28.65 + 45.5 dwelling units = 74.15 dwelling units 

 

In consideration of this matter, the City Council determined that 74 dwelling units are 

allowed upon the subject site (Site H) based on the assigned number of dwelling units 

permitted per the PDA, plus the 28 commercial acreage conversion dwelling units.  As a 

result of the City Council’s determination, the proposed number of dwelling units (74) is 

considered consistent with the East Oaks Master Development Plan and the PDA. 

 

Density.  As part of the City’s consideration of the Preliminary Plan/Plat, it was 
determined that 9,636 or 8,941 square feet of land was provided per dwelling unit upon 
the entire subject site (16.37 acres/74 units or 15.19 acres/74 units) depending upon 
whether land devoted to the Centerville Road right-of-way is included in the calculation. 
 
The RCM - PUD zoning district does not impose a minimum lot area requirement.  Section 
151.056.E of the Zoning Ordinance does however, stipulate that within RCM - PUD 
Districts, a minimum of 0.25 gross acres (10,890 square feet) of land is required per 
dwelling unit.  In this regard, the proposed amount of land area per dwelling unit is slightly 
less than that required within the RCM - PUD District. 
 
The recently approved 8th Amendment to the East Oaks PDA states however, that the 
Developer is entitled to 74 units upon Site H.  In regard to allowed development density, 
the Amendment specifically states the following: 
 

33



 

4 
 

To the extent necessary to allow the construction of a total of seventy-four 

(74) dwelling units on Site H, all gross density or other density-related 

requirements are hereby modified to allow the construction of 74 dwelling 

units on Site H. 

 

Also, to be noted is that the PDA further states that, in the case of conflict between the 
terms of the PDA and the City’s Zoning Ordinance, the requirements of the PDA prevail. 
 
Site Access.  Consistent with the approved Preliminary Plan/Plat, the subject site is 
proposed to be accessed from the east via a single point along Centerville Road at a 
location approximately 1,200 feet south of County Road H2. 
 
Issues related to site access should be subject to comment and recommendation by 
Ramsey County and the City Engineer. 
 
Floor Area Ratio.  As part of the City’s consideration on the Preliminary Plan/Plat 
application, the applicant provided floor area ratio information which was well-within the 
maximum 37.5 percent floor ratio requirement.  Some concern existed however, related 
to the accuracy of the floor ratio numbers which and the related method of calculation. 
 

It was therefore stipulated, as a condition of Preliminary Plan/Plat approval, that the 
applicant provide a floor area ratio calculation in accordance with the City’s required 
method of calculation and demonstrate compliance with the City’s 37.5 percent floor area 
ratio requirement. 
 

In the calculation of the floor area ratio, the following Ordinance definitions must be 

utilized: 

 

“Floor Area Ratio”: 

 

The ratio of the total floor area of all buildings to the gross lot area, excluding 

2/3 of any wetland. 

 

“Total Floor Area”: 

 

The total area of all stories, as determined using exterior dimensions, 

including garages that are not part of the basement, clerestory area and 

covered porches and decks. 

 

Based on the preceding definitions, the “floor area ratio” = total floor area/gross lot area, 

less 2/3 of any wetland. 

 

Attached as Exhibit C is an updated floor area ratio calculation provided by the applicant 

which excludes two-thirds of the area devoted to wetlands.  According to the calculation, 

34



 

5 
 

a floor area ratio of 24.3 percent is proposed.  Such ratio is within the maximum 37.5 

percent floor ratio requirement imposed in the City’s RCM - PUD zoning district. 

 

Parcel Combination.  As in the case of the approved Preliminary Plan/Plat, the 

configurations of proposed Tracts A and B correspond to the proposed phasing plan. 

 

As a condition of Preliminary Plan/Plat approval, it was stipulated that, prior to building 

permit issuance for the Phase 2 condominium building addition, Tracts A and B must be 

combined such that the side lot line is eliminated and does not intersect the building (to 

avoid the creation of a nonconforming structure setback condition).  It is recommended 

that this condition should be made a condition of Final Plan/Plat approval as well. 

 
Easements.  The submitted Final Plat/Easement Plan appropriately illustrates 
easements for utilities, trails, stormwater, and the proposed roadway.  The acceptability 
of the proposed easements should be subject to review and approval by the City 
Engineer. 
 
Park Dedication.  Like the approved Preliminary Plan/Plat, the Final Plan/Plat does not 

include any parkland dedication.  Park dedication requirements for the development sites 

located within the East Oaks Development area were previously satisfied by the 

developer via the following: 

 

1. Open space easements 
2. Conservation easements to the Minnesota Land Trust 
3. Rough grading of park and trail areas and the construction of trails as depicted 

on the trail plan 
4. Primary trail easements to NOHOA 
5. Conveyance of open space as depicted on the Park and Open Space Plan to 

NOHOA per the terms of the PDA 
 

Setbacks.  The East Oaks PDA imposes the following minimum setbacks requirements 

upon residential detached and attached structures located in RCM-PUD Districts (which 

includes the subject site): 

 

Principal Building to Roadway Easements: 

 

Front: 15 feet 

Side: 20 feet 

Rear: 20 feet 

 

Principal Building to Principal Building: 

 

Front to front: 40 feet 

Side to side: 15 feet 

35



 

6 
 

Rear to rear: 50 feet 

 

Also, to be noted is that the PUD zoning district, as provided in the City’s Zoning 

Ordinance, states that structures must not be located within 30 feet of the perimeter lot 

line of the PUD District or phase of a PUD.”  Recognizing that this requirement does not 

apply to interior lot lines, the 30-foot perimeter setback requirement is satisfied. 

 

Further, the condominium building must be set back a minimum of 30 feet from all 

wetlands.  This requirement has likewise been satisfied. 

 

Unlike the site plan which was submitted as part of the Preliminary Plan/Plat application, 

the parcel line between the two proposed condominium building phases is not illustrated.  

In this regard, it is not clear if the lot line which is to bisect Phase 1 and Phase 2 

construction has been located such that the Phase 1 condominium building will maintain 

a minimum 20-foot setback from the adjacent property line to the north.  To ensure 

compliance with such setback, it is recommended that the Final Site Plan (Exhibit I) be 

modified to illustrate the boundaries of Tracts A and B. 

 

Black Lake Ordinary High Water Level (OHWL) Boundary.  As a condition of 

Preliminary Plan/Plat approval, the applicant was required to illustrate any portion of the 

subject property located within the shoreland management area of Black Lake and a line 

indicating 150 feet from the ordinary high water level of the lake and/or verify that no 

portion of the site is subject to the shoreland management area overlay district. 

 

Attached as Exhibit R is a letter from the DNR (dated May 4, 2021) which verifies that the 

subject site lies outside of the boundaries of the Black Lake shoreland management 

overlay district.  Therefore, the proposed condominium building is not subject to shoreland 

setback requirements. 

 

Also included in Exhibit R is an email message from the DNR to the City Planner (dated 

June 16, 2021) which confirms that the boundary of the Black Lake shoreland 

management overlay district (1,000 feet from the OHWL of 899.4 feet) is accurately 

illustrated on the City’s official zoning map and that no modifications to the map are 

necessary. 

 

Building Height.  As part of Preliminary Plan/Plat processing, it was discovered that the 

proposed condominium building, at 43 feet in height, exceeded the maximum 35-foot 

height requirement of the PDA. 

 

In conjunction with Preliminary Plan/Plat processing, the City Council approved an 

amendment to the East Oaks PDA which makes an allowance for the proposed building 

height.  Specifically, the approved 8th Amendment establishes a maximum allowed 

building height of 47 feet upon Site H of the East Oaks PDA. 

36



 

7 
 

 

According to the building elevations provided with the Final Plan/Plat application, the 

condominium building measures 43 feet in height which is within the maximum 47-foot 

height requirement established by the 8th Amendment. 

 

Building Materials.  According to the submitted building elevations, the condominium 

building is to be finished in a combination of stone and brick veneer, fiber cement panels 

(or alternate) and glass. 

 

While proposed building colors are not specified, the submitted building elevations 

illustrate earth tone finishes. 

 

Although the City’s CS, Commercial Service zoning district includes architectural design 

standards, including exterior finish material requirements, neither the applicable RCM - 

PUD, Residential Commercial Mixed zoning district or the PDA impose finish material 

requirements. 

 

It is the opinion of Staff that the proposed building finishes are of high quality and exceed 

standards commonly applied in other communities. 

 

Recreational Facilities.  As part of the City’s consideration of the Preliminary Plan/Plat 
application, the applicant indicated that they are working with NOHOA to determine if 
there are any recreational improvements which would be beneficial to provide upon the 
subject site.  Staff has not received any additional information related possible 
recreational facilities which may be located on the site.   
 
Staff continues to encourage the applicant to work with the North Oaks Home Owners’ 
Association (NOHOA) in determining possible recreational improvements upon the 
subject site. 
 
Trails.  Consistent with the approved Preliminary Plan/Plat, the submitted Final Plan/Plat 
illustrates two trail connections (easements) which are intended to link the proposed 
subdivision to the trail system.  Specifically, the proposed trail connections provide links 
to the existing primary trail located west of the site which extends north to Waverly 
Gardens and south to The Pines. 
 

It is understood that the trail easement locations illustrated on the Final Plan/Plat reflect 
input received from NOHOA input and have been mutually agreed upon by the Developer 
and NOHOA. 
 

 

 

 

 

37



 

8 
 

Off-Street Parking 

 

Parking Supply.  Within RCM - PUD Districts, a parking supply requirement of two 

spaces per dwelling unit is imposed.  Of the two spaces per unit, one must be 

enclosed. 

 

Appendix A of the PDA also states that, in addition to the preceding requirement, 

one space per dwelling provided in shared off-lot locations must be provided unless 

each dwelling unit has three spaces. 

 

The parking layout illustrated on the Final Plan/Plat is identical to the parking layout 

illustrated on the approved Preliminary Plan/Plat. 

 

According to information provided by the applicant, 222 parking spaces are 

proposed upon the subject site.  Of the 222 spaces, 148 are to be located 

underground (84 spaces in Phase 1 and 64 spaces in Phase 2).  An additional 74 

surface parking stalls are illustrated on the east side of the building as guest parking. 

 

As indicated as part of the Preliminary Plan/Plat review, off-street parking supply 

requirements of the PDA have been satisfied with the use of “proof of parking” stalls 

to identify parking stalls that the Developer does not propose to construct at the time 

of development but has agreed to construct if it is determined at a later time by the 

City that the full required number of parking stalls for the condominium development. 

 

 Ratio Required 
Spaces 

Proposed 
Spaces 

Dwelling Units 
(74) 

2 spaces per unit 
(one of which is 
enclosed) 

148 148 

Guest Parking 1 space per unit 74 74 (18 of which 
are “proof of 
parking” stalls) 

Total  222 222 

 

To be noted is that only 56 of the required 74 guest parking spaces are proposed at 

the time of project construction.  In this regard, 18 additional spaces are designated 

as “proof of parking” stalls which would be constructed if the need for additional 

guest parking arises.  While Staff considers this an acceptable, although not 

explicitly permitted, condition (as less impervious surface coverage will result), it is 

recommended that the City reserve the right to require the construction of the “proof 

of parking” stalls if the need arises (as determined by the City). 

 

According to the American Disability Act, a minimum of seven accessible spaces 

must be provided for parking facilities having 201 to 300 stalls.  Therefore, as a 

38



 

9 
 

condition of Final Plan/Plat approval, it is recommended that a minimum of seven 

off-street parking spaces be provided and so designated for use by disabled persons 

and that at least four of the seven required stalls be provided as part of Phase 1.  It 

is understood that a portion of the required accessible spaces will be provided 

underground. 

 

Dimensional Requirements.  According to the PDA, off-street parking stalls must 

measure not less than 9 feet in width and 18 feet in depth.  In conformance with this 

requirement, surface parking stalls illustrated on the Final Site Plan (Exhibit I) 

measure 9 feet in width and 20 feet in depth. 

 

Park Dedication.  Like the Preliminary Plan/Plat, the Final Plan/Plat does not include any 

parkland dedication.  Park dedication requirements for the development sites located 

within the East Oaks Development area were previously satisfied by the developer via 

the following: 

 

1. Open space easements 
2. Conservation easements to the Minnesota Land Trust 
3. Rough grading of park and trail areas and the construction of trails as depicted 

on the trail plan 
4. Primary trail easements to NOHOA 
5. Conveyance of open space as depicted on the Park and Open Space Plan to 

NOHOA per the terms of the PDA 
 

Tree Preservation.  As a condition of Preliminary Plan/Plat approval, a number of 

conditions related to tree preservation were imposed.  It is recommended that such 

conditions, reiterated below, likewise be made conditions of Final Plan/Plat approval. 

 

A. Fell all trees to be removed towards the centerline of the street to limit injury 
to saved trees. 
 

B. Install tree protection fence immediately after tree removals.  Make sure 
fence is restored by contractors on site and immediately raise fence if it is 
compromised.  Pre-construction meetings are an excellent time to 
implement the seriousness of tree preservation efforts and penalties for  
violations. 
 

C. If grade changes are excessive retaining walls may be a viable option. 
 

D. Do not place fill around save trees. 
 

E. If save trees are going to be preserved within the construction limits armor 
trees with 2X4’s to reduce the chance of mechanical injury to the trunk. 
 

F. After harvesting, blow chipped tops of trees along tree protection fencing to 

39



 

10 
 

help reduce soil compaction from construction equipment and moderate soil 
temperatures and moisture levels. 
 

G. Before preserving save trees on edges make sure they are healthy (good 
structure, no decay, etc.) and will not become a hazard tree within a few 
years.  An arborist or City Forester assessment may be justified for 
individual trees. 
 

H. Root cutting and growth hormone regulator treatments for high-value trees 
are also options that could be implemented. 
 

I. Brushing of understory material outside of construction limits may be an 
option since it is 99 percent buckthorn.  An inventory to look for any non-
buckthorn species could be incorporated to mark and avoid those shrubs 
during buckthorn removal.  Care should be taken to minimize impacts to soil 
during this process.  Scraping off of any topsoil should be prohibited as 90 
percent of the tree’s roots are within the top one foot of soil. 
 

J. Follow oak wilt protocol as recommended by the City Forester. 
 

Landscaping.  As required, final landscape plan(s) has been provided for review.  The 

plan calls for numerous plantings throughout the site with concentrations of plantings 

provided near the site entrance, within the driveway median, along the driveway corridor, 

within the driveway turnaround median and along the building perimeter. 

 

The plan is generally similar to the landscape plan provided as part of Preliminary 

Plan/Plat review but has been expanded to include details of building perimeter planting 

areas. 

 

Like the preliminary landscape plan, the final plan calls for 66 deciduous trees, 36 

evergreen trees, 6 ornamental trees, 207 shrubs and 304 perennials are proposed 

(resulting in 619 total plantings). 

 

It is the opinion of Staff that the variety of landscape plantings and placement upon the 

site is well-conceived. 

 

According to the applicant, the subject site is to be irrigated. 

 

Signage.  Included with the Final Plan/Plat application materials is an entrance 

monument sign plan (attached as Exhibit O as part of the Landscape Plan).  According 

to the PDA, monuments to identify development sites are permitted if they conform to the 

following standards: 

 

1. Not exceed 8 feet in height as measured from the finished grade. 
2. Not extend into adjacent road easement. 

40



 

11 
 

3. Not obstruct the view of oncoming traffic. 
4. Include landscaping around the base consisting of shrubs, flowers, and ornamental 

trees, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 151.034 of the Ordinance. 
5. No exposed neon lighting on sign. 
6. Designed to be compatible with adjacent building architecture. 
7. The sign face shall not exceed 80 square feet for each side of the sign. 
 

The PDA also indicates that, notwithstanding the foregoing standards, deviations from 

the standards regarding the final location of a monument may be approved by the City. 

 

While the two proposed monument signs meet the majority of the preceding PDA 

requirements, additional detail related to sign area, lighting and location (proximity to the 

roadway easement) is necessary to make a final determination.  As a condition of Final 

Plan/Plat approval, it is recommended that the proposed monument signs meet the 

preceding PDA requirements. 

 

Trash.  According to the applicant, trash handling activities are proposed to take place 

within the underground parking area.  Thus, no outdoor storage of refuse is proposed. 

 

Development Agreement.  The East Oaks Planned Development requires the 
execution of a development agreement prior to the recording of the registered land 
surveys (RLS) for the subject site. 
 
As condition of Final Plan/Plat approval, and requirement of Section 5.2 of the PDA, the 
Developer must execute a development agreement in a form substantially similar to that 
found within the PDA, subject to future changes if any required by the City. 
 
The development agreement must be executed prior to the recording of the RLS for the 
subject site. 
 
Engineering Comments.  As a condition of Final Plan/Plat approval, final plans must 

be revised to address the City Engineer’s comments.  Upon revision, final plans and any 

necessary associated documents must be provided to the City. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Island Field Final Plan/Plat has been found to be consistent with the approved 
Preliminary Plan/Plat.  Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of 
the Final Plan/Plat subject to the fulfillment of the following conditions: 
 

1. Final plans shall be revised to address the City Engineer’s comments.  Upon 
revision, final plans and any necessary associated documents shall be provided 
to the City. 
 

41



 

12 
 

2. The Phase 1 condominium building shall maintain a minimum 20-foot setback from 
the adjacent property line to the north.  To ensure compliance with such structure 
setback requirement, the Final Site Plan shall be modified to illustrate the 
boundaries of Tracts A and B. 
 

3. Trail easements shall be conveyed to NOHOA following subdivision approval and 
prior to the conveyance of the various affected lots to third parties. 
 

4. Prior to building permit issuance for the Phase 2 condominium building addition, 
Tracts A and B shall be combined such that the side lot line is eliminated and does 
not intersect the building (to avoid the creation of a nonconforming structure 
setback condition). 
 

5. The following minimum principal structure setbacks shall be satisfied: 
 

 Principal Building to Roadway Easements: 

 

Front:   15 feet 

Side:   20 feet 

Rear:   20 feet 

 

Principal Building to Adjacent Principal Buildings: 

 

Front to front: 40 feet 

Side to side:  15 feet 

Rear to rear:  50 feet 

 

 Wetlands:  30 feet 

 

 Structures to Ordinary High-Water Level (of Black Lake):  150 feet 

 
6. A minimum of seven off-street parking spaces shall be provided and so designated 

for use by disabled persons and at least four of the seven required stalls be 
provided as part of Phase 1 development. 
 

7. The City shall reserve the right to require the construction of the “proof of parking” 
stalls if the need arises (as determined by the City). 
 

8. All proposed development on each of the lots shall be required to comply with 
applicable City Code/Zoning Ordinance provisions and requirements of the PDA. 
 

9. The proposed monument signs shall satisfy the following conditions: 
 

A. Not exceed 8 feet in height as measured from the finished grade. 
B. Not extend into adjacent road easement. 

42



 

13 
 

C. Not obstruct the view of oncoming traffic. 
D. Include landscaping around the base consisting of shrubs, flowers, and 

ornamental trees, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 151.034 of 
the Ordinance. 

E. No exposed neon lighting on sign. 
F. Designed to be compatible with adjacent building architecture. 
G. The sign face shall not exceed 80 square feet for each side of the sign. 

 
10. Where practical, the applicant shall comply with the following recommendations of 

the City Forester in an effort to preserve/save trees upon the subject site: 
 

A. Fell all trees to be removed towards the centerline of the street to limit injury 
to saved trees. 
 

B. Install tree protection fence immediately after tree removals.  Make sure 
fence is respected by contractors on site and immediately raise fence if it is 
compromised.  Pre-construction meetings are an excellent time to 
implement the seriousness of tree preservation efforts and penalties for 
violations. 
 

C. If grade changes are excessive retaining walls may be a viable option. 
 

D. Do not place fill around save trees. 
 

E. If save trees are going to be preserved within the construction limits armor 
trees with 2X4’s to reduce the chance of mechanical injury to the trunk. 

 
F. After harvesting, blow chipped tops of trees along tree protection fencing to 

help reduce soil compaction from construction equipment and moderate soil  
temperatures and moisture levels. 
 

G. Before preserving save trees on edges make sure they are healthy (good 
structure, no decay, etc.) and will not become a hazard tree within a few 
years.  An arborist or City Forester assessment may be justified for 
individual trees. 
 

H. Root cutting and growth hormone regulator treatments for high value trees 
are also options that could be implemented. 
 

I. Brushing of understory material outside of construction limits may be an 
option since it is 99 percent buckthorn.  An inventory to look for any 
nonbuckthorn species could be incorporated to mark and avoid those 
shrubs during buckthorn removal.  Care should be taken to minimize 
impacts to soil during this process.  Scraping off of any topsoil should be 
prohibited as 90 percent of the tree’s roots are within the top one foot of soil. 
 

43



 

14 
 

J. Follow the oak wilt protocol as recommended by the City Forester. 
 
11. The applicant shall work with the City Forester and lot purchasers and explore 

options to preserve trees located upon all lots within the subdivision. 

 
12. The developer shall enter into a development agreement with the City (the form of 

which shall be acceptable to the City) and post all necessary securities required 
by it and pay all required fees and costs including all City planning, engineering, 
and legal fees.  The development agreement shall specifically require execution of 
a stormwater facilities maintenance agreement and other necessary conditions 
and shall be recorded against the subject property. 

 
 

cc: Kevin Kress, City Administrator 

Tim Korby, City Engineer 

Jim Thomson, City Attorney 

 Mikeya Griffin, NOHOA Executive Director 

 Jack Gleason, Department of Natural Resources 

 Phil Belfiori, Vadnais Lake Area Water Management Organization 

 Mark Houge and Gary Eagles, North Oaks Company 

44



 

 

2550 University Avenue West | Suite 400N | St. Paul, MN 55114 

   Main 651.644.4389  +  Fax 651.644.9446 

H R GR EEN . C OM  

 



 

 

 

July 7, 2021 

Mr. Kevin Kress 

City Administrator 

City of  North Oaks 

 

Re:    Island Field – Final Engineering Plan Review Combined Comments 

 

Dear Kevin: 

 

The Island Field Development plans have been submitted for review.  The engineering documents have been 

received, sorted and f iled, and an engineering plan review has been completed on the following f inal plan sheets:  

Sheet 1.0 – Site Plan – CSG (2) 

Sheet 1A – IF Final Existing Conditions (2) 

Sheet 2.0 – IF Final Plat Plan (2) 

Sheet 3.0 – IF Final ESMT Plan (2) 

Sheet 4.0 – IF Grading Plan (2) 

Sheet 5.0 – IF Sanitary Sewer & Watermain Plan (2) (sheets 5, 5B, 5C, 5D) 

Sheet 6.0 – IF Storm Sewer Plan (2) 

Sheet 7.0 – IF Street-Turn Lane Plan (2) (Sheets 5F & 5G) 

Sheet 8A – IF CGS – Island Field Landscape (2) 

Sheet 8B – IF 21 03 19 – Island Field Landscape Treatments (2) 

 

A summary of  the review comments for the sheets above are as follows: 

Sheet 1.0 – Site Plan – CSG (2) 

1. Correct spelling in note 

2. Add vehicular concrete to legend 

3. Lighting shown on plans but no details, electrical, plan sheets, etc. are shown and need to be provide.   

SHEET 01A – IF Final Existing Conditions (2) 

4. Conf irm wetland delineation 

5. Only shown existing water main is north of  development. 

6. No waterlines are shown as existing east of  Centerville Rd. Where is the water connection located?  

SHEET 2.0 – IF Final Plat Plan (2)  

7. Shown extension of  BSB around wetland 

SHEET 3.0 – IF Final ESMT Plan (2) 

45



 

  
Kevin Kress 

July 7, 2021 

 

  
 2 

 

8. Forcemain appears to be within BSB areas. Show BSB continuation and show construction outside of  the 

limits 

9. Are these radii adequate for a service vehicle/truck?  

10.  Need access to SED pond for maintenance  

11.  Shown as trail on site plan. Does it need a trail easement also?  

SHEET 4.0 – IF Grading Plan (2) 

12.  Need wall details, including how drainage is carried away f rom top of  wall  

13.  Move General Notes, #3, to show full limits of  BMP installations   

14.  Identify which pond is being reference in #2 under Construction Notes  

15.  How are the temporary ponds cleaned, maintained and seeded  

16.  See General Notes #9, correct f rom No to Not limited  

17.  Work- grading and silt fence are shown outside development limit. All work should remain within 

development limits.  

18.  Identify 100-yr high water elevations on plans  

19.  Are both/either sites of  Phase 1 and Phase 2 to be graded?  

20.  Rock wall within the wetland buf fer, detail wall  

21.  Does SED basin have an EOF? Need to detail basin  

22.  Provide land bridge detail, sections and f inal geotechnical report and clarify geotechnical option being 

utilized on plans for land bridge 

23.  Land bridge should be extended to/past the wetland limits  

24.  Provide silt fence detail  

25.  Provide pond, EOF, bench, etc. Need details and sections  

26.  How is the pond accessed and maintained?  

27.  Move detail to show all silt fence BMP limits  

28.  Identify Temp Sediment basin on plans under construction sequencing  

29.  Provide land bridge information and details on grading sheet 

30.  Add silt fence and rock entrance details to Legend  

31.  Legend detail- Bio-Roll, Concrete washout, Inlet Protection and Wood Fiber Blanket are on shown in 

plans. Add locations of  each and details for these  

SHEET 5.0 – IF Sanitary Sewer & Watermain Plan (2) (sheets 5, 5B, 5C, 5D 

32.  Forcemain shall not be placed under retaining wall per preliminary review comments. Forcemain needs to 

be relocated or rerouted 

33.  Add a Legend and a Scale to the plan 

34.  Detail tee connections, etc.  

35.  Will the stub feed service lines and f ire lines for each building?  

36.  Preliminary comment was to consider realigning the water and the sewer lines outside roadway af ter Sta. 

2 + 50. Was this considered?  

37.  Watermain is shown in roadway easement. Utility easement is 12” outside of  the road easement. Road 

easement shod include utilities.  

46



 

  
Kevin Kress 

July 7, 2021 

 

  
 3 

38.  Service lines include bends. Are they allowed? If  so, how are they identif ied/tracked for future 

maintenance/repairs? 

39.  What is the valve for?  

40.  Detail existing main, new water line connections, valves, hydrant, trench, dual line separation, etc.  

41.  Is there no watermain within Centerville Rd. for a connection?  

42.  What are valves outside hydrant?  

43.  No utility easement for water/sewer.   

44.  Detail connections 

45.  Watermain not shown on existing conditions sheet. Is this being constructed with this project?  

SHEET 5B 

46.  911.9 is a high point. Blow of f  assembly is needed, per preliminary review comments  

47.  Conf irm no DIP for water main  

48.  Missing Hydrant  

49.  Show gas crossing  

50.  Detail Forcemain connection  

51.  Forcemain shown past MH 

52.  Show/detail conf lict/crossing 

53.  Detail crossing, show ant protection/Insulation requirements 

54.  Preliminary comments required clean out at low point 

SHEET 5C 

55.  Add lif t station details 

56.  Show retaining wall. Preliminary comments required FM to be rerouted and not go under the wall  

SHEET 5D 

57.  Tying into an existing pipe? If  so, need to detail and provide more information  

58.  Need water system details  

59.  Why is the invert about 891 if  the deepest pipe is 898? 

60.  Preliminary review comments to change to Sch. 40 pipe 

61.  Provide MH detail for MH 1 drop 

      SHEET 6.0 – IF Storm Sewer Plan (2) 

62.  Does this pipe have an end treatment? 

63.  Add Legend to plan  

64.  Need details for SED Basin 

65.  Provide pond details, show/detail how phase 2 drainage connects to ponds   

66.  Show the all pond access locations, and detail  

67.  How is the pond accessed for maintenance?  

68.  All structures in the table are CBMH’s. Conf irm no standard CB and need for detail  

69.  Storm manholes should have sumps 

70.  Inlet in top f igure is shown below existing grade 

71.  Elevations do not match in Outlet Structure-Pond #1N Table.  

47



 

  
Kevin Kress 

July 7, 2021 

 

  
 4 

72.  Elevations do not match positions in Outlet Structure-Pond #1N 

73.  Elevations do not match (2.0’ sump and bottom 898.5) in Outlet Structure-Pond #1N 

SHEET 7.0 - IF Street-Turn Lane Plan (2) {Sheets 5F & 5G} 

 

SHEET 5F 

a. Sheet title is 7.0. Sheet number is 5F. Clarify numbers. 

b. Street signage needs to be included 

c. Fire-lane signage, per Lake Johanna FD needs to be included  

d. How is Centerville Road draining?  

e. Identify locations of  curb types and detail any transitions, ensure curbing eliminate runof f  and 

erosion 

f. Centerville Road elevation is shown as 907.30 in prof ile. Correct to match.  

g. Missing information in Standard Details Residential Street Section Chart  

h. Option 2 – Shallow Correction and Construction Surcharge is the option identif ied.  

1. The wetland crossing addendum letter (03/32/21) noted a recommendation to raise the 

road elevation above the 2-3’ shown above the wetland elevation, in addition to the 

surcharge during construction  

2. Road elevations appear to still be 2-3” above existing  

3. A 4’ surcharge is recommended “during construction”.  

1. Is building construction concurrent with road construction? 

2. What is the “during construction” time f rame for surcharge?  

3. How will site be accessed with surcharge in place?  

4. Identify and detail soils report road section, and over-excavation, for clarif ication on 

plans 

i. Road low spot in within land bridge, with curb and gutter. Ponding will occur. Stormwater needs to 

be collected, treated, etc.  

j. Collect, treat, etc. Centerville Road stormwater separately f rom on -site system  

k. Titled as sheet 7- Clarify  

 

SHEET 5G 

l. Entire turn lane is not shown on plans   

m. Add any required signage  

 

SHEET 8A – IF CGS – Island Field Landscape (2) 

74.  Show all utility easements to identify conf licts, maintenance locations, typ.  

SHEET 8B – IF 21 03 19 – Island Field Landscape Treatments (2) 

75.  Show easement limits and wetland limits on plan 

General Comments –  

76.  Address all preliminary comments f rom checklist  

48



 

  
Kevin Kress 

July 7, 2021 

 

  
 5 

77.  Provide lif t station specif ications for f inal review 

78.  Continue working with NOHOA to identify active recreational area amenities, including parks, trails, etc.  

79.  Coordinate with NOHOA on street, parking lot and building lighting, including photometric plans  

80.  Coordinate with NOHOA on architectural plans and reviews 

81.  Provide f inal reports that have not been submitted (ie. wetland delineation, MnRAM, forestry, etc.) 

82.  Roadway easement does not allow room for future maintenance or snow removal activities. Widen 

roadway easement a minimum of  10’ behind the curb to create a 60’ wide roadway easement, centered 

on the road 

83.  Coordinate with NOHOA on active, private park space, granting access and accessibility  

84.  Coordinate trail maintenance responsibilities with NOHOA 

85.  Coordinate with NOHOA on loop trail and lif t station access 

86.  Coordinate with NOHOA on lighting responsibilities and approvals 

87.  Coordinate f inal land bridge design with NOHOA for approval 

88.  Coordinate with NOHOA on snow removal at road/parking area connections  

89.  Coordinate with NOHOA to clarify landscape maintenance responsibilities  

90.  Stormwater report needs to clarify: 

a. drainage area locations with road and contours 

b. how roof  drains to ponds 

c. Pond 1 outlet plan details 

d. How CN 70 was determined for Lawns, and what soil types 

e. How all roof  and road runof f  is treated prior to entering wetland areas 

91.  Coordinate with NOHOA on development declarations prior to providing to purchasers  

92.  Stormwater Management Plan section 4.1.2 states wetlands will not be altered as part of  this project. The 

surface bridge impacts wetlands. Provide an explanation of  how that is addressed. 

93.  Total drainage area of  29.42 ac. and individual catchment areas totaling 14.71 ac. do not match. Conf irm 

calculations and clarify 29.42 ac f igure 

Thank you for the opportunity to perform the engineering plan review on the Island Field Subdivision. Please 

accept these review comments. If  you have any questions, or need any additional information, please contact 

John Morast at jmorast@hrgreen.com or at 763.710.1514. 

 

Sincerely,  

  

 

 

HR GREEN, INC 

John W. Morast, PE 

Regional Director 

49

mailto:jmorast@hrgreen.com


50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



Page 1 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ISLAND FIELD FINAL PLAN/FINAL PLAT SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS AND 

PROCESS 

  

94



Page 2 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

1999 EAST OAKS PDA (AS AMENDED) 

The East Oaks PDA requires that final plans be submitted and approved for all development sites 

within the East Oaks Development.  

 

Final Plan Definition:  “Final Plan” means the: 

A.  Registered Land Survey; 

B. Development Contract; and  

C. Detailed plans and drawings approved by the City pursuant to the zoning ordinance 

and the subdivision ordinance for each Development Site that shall address the 

following: 

 

 Grading 

 Wetlands 

 Surface water quality 

 Storm water controls, erosion controls and drainage 

 Street and lot layout 

 Utilities 

 Landscaping 

 Basement elevations 

 Signage  

 Easement for utilities 

Prior to Final Plan Approval Developer Shall Comply with the Following Requirements: 

PDA Final 

Plan Approval 

Requirement 

Item Required to be Filed with 

City 

Has Item 

Been Filed 

with City? 

(Y/N or 

N/A) 

Notes/Specific 

Reference to 

Document and Page 

Number for 

Submission 

 Model deed restrictions, covenants, 

and restrictions, and any proposed 

HOA documents, articles of 

incorporation or bylaws or other 

documents controlling the use and 

maintenance of land within the 

Development Site; proposed 

declarations (see Sections 2.4, 7.1, 

of the PDA; See Model 

Development Contract Sections 3.8 

and 9.1)   

 

 

 

Y 

 

 

 

 

Received and 

forwarded to 

NOHOA. 

95



Page 3 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

 Final Plan must conform with the 

PDA unless otherwise approved by 

the Council 

 

Y 

As approved by PZ 

and City Council. 

 Final Plan must conform with the 

East Oaks Project Master 

Development Plan unless otherwise 

approved by the Council 

 

Y 

As approved by PZ 

and City Council. 

 Final Plan must conform with the 

preliminary plan for the 

development site unless otherwise 

approved by the Council 

 

Y 

As approved by PZ 

and City Council. 

 Submit soil boring as required by the 

City Engineer 

Y Ensuring design 

compliance during 

plan review 

 Submit final road designs as 

required by the City Engineer 

Y Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans  

 Submit typical pavement sections as 

required by the City Engineer 

Y Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans 

 

 Submit grading quantities for the 

roadways as required by the City 

Engineer 

Y Provided for entire 

site 

 Submit overall detailed grading 

plans and a narrative which 

addresses how Development Site 

grading for utilities, street, and 

individual Development Site 

Development will occur; subject to 

Council and VLAWMO approval 

Y Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans 

 Review and recommendation from 

VLAWMO 

Y Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans 

 Submit overall detailed grading 

plans which include an overall 

erosion control plan which addresses 

erosion control and protection of 

surface water quality; subject to 

Council and VLAWMO approval 

Y Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans 

 Review and recommendation from 

VLAWMO 

Y  

 Obtain all necessary approvals, 

permits, and licenses from the City 

Y Some City approvals 

will be conditions of 

96



Page 4 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

final plan approval 

(e.g., execution of 

development 

agreement) 

 Obtain all necessary approvals, 

permits, and licenses from other 

regulatory entities and agencies with 

jurisdiction over the Development 

Site 

Y Some agency 

approvals will be 

conditions of final 

plan approval (e.g., 

recording of the RLS 

with County) 

 Major design requirements of the 

City shall be determined prior to 

construction and incorporated into 

the Final Plan 

Y Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans 

 Major design requirements of other 

regulatory entities and agencies with 

jurisdiction over the development 

site shall be determined prior to 

construction and incorporated into 

the Final Plan 

Y Comments provided, 

with additional 

meetings for 

incorporation into 

final plans 

 City Engineer must approve 

Developer’s Contract for installation 

of all utilities  

TBD City Engineer review 

during site 

development. 

 

  

97



Page 5 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

CHAPTER 152: SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 

Section 152.022: Approval of Plat 

City Code 

Section 

152.022: 

Approval of 

Plat 

Item Required to be Filed with 

City 

Has Item 

Been Filed 

with City? 

(Y/N or 

N/A) 

Notes/Specific 

Reference to 

Document and Page 

Number for 

Submission 

 An original and 20 copies of the 

final drawing 

 

Y Per City Staff, 

received by City 

 Certificate of surveyor Y 

 

Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plan 

 Legal description of parcel to be 

subdivided 

Y Application; plans 

 Owner’s statement (if subdivider is 

not owner) 

N/A Subdivider is owner 

 Notarized certificate of all mortgage 

holders acknowledging adoption of 

plat 

N/A No mortgage per 

Developer 

 Proof of ownership (registered 

property certificate) 

Y  

 Performance bond (unless Council 

determines subdivider is responsible 

and financially sound) in the amount 

equal to 1.5 x the City Engineer’s 

estimated cost of the required 

improvements to guarantee 

completion of improvements and 

payment of city attorney fees 

 

 

 

 

N/A 

Not provided; will be 

provided as part of 

Development 

Agreement as is 

typical practice.  

 Two (2) copies of the final plat 

(NOTE: Plat is defined as a 

Registered Land Survey) showing 

the location, width, and type of each 

easement and any other special 

provisions 

 

Y 

 

Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans 

 Detailed descriptions, similar to 

those contained in the individual 

warranty deeds, of each easement 

and special provision, including the 

legal description of location, 

restrictions as to use of land where 

 

 

 

Y 

Easements shown on 

plat; included in 

easement binder. 

98



Page 6 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

easement is located or provision 

applies, and right of use of and 

access to easement 

 If easements are moved slightly 

during road construction process, a 

final record or as-built plat is to be 

submitted showing final easement 

locations 

 

 

Y 

 

Will be reviewed 

with NOHOA and 

during construction. 

Changes will be 

captured on as-builts 

 

  

99



Page 7 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

CONDITIONS INCLUDED IN PRELIMINARY PLAN APPROVAL 

RESOLUTION NO. 1411 

 

Resolution 

No. 1411 

Requirement from 

Preliminary Plan 

Approval 

Has Item 

Been 

Completed 

(Y/N or 

N/A) 

Notes/Specific 

Reference to 

Document and 

Page Number for 

Submission 

 

 The entire roadway 

turnaround area, near 

the entrance to the 

building, shall be 

included in Parcel 1 

 

Y 

Change has been 

made 

 

 

 Proposed easements 

shall be subject to 

review and approval 

by City Engineer 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation into 

final plans 

 

 A Planned 

Development 

Agreement 

amendment be 

processed and 

approved to allow the 

proposed 43-foot 

structure height 

 

 

Y 

 

 

Approved by 

Council on 12-17-

20 by Resolution 

No. 1410 

 

 City Council shall find 

the proposed 

residential density to 

be permitted per the 

terms of the PDA or a 

Planned Development 

Agreement 

Amendment to be 

processed and 

approved to explicitly 

allow 74 dwelling 

units on the 

development site and 

the associated gross 

density. 

 

 

 

Y 

 

 

 

Approved by the 

City Council on 

12-17-20 by 

Resolution No. 

1410 

 

 The applicant shall 

update the provided 

floor area ratio 

calculation in 

 

 

 

Y 

 

Compliance has 

been confirmed by 

applicant 

 

100



Page 8 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

accordance with the 

City’s required 

method of calculation 

and demonstrate 

compliance with the 

City’s 0.375 floor area 

ratio requirement. 

 

 

 Owner is encouraged 

to continue working 

with NOHOA in 

determining possible 

recreational 

improvements upon 

the subject site. 

 

Y 

 

Applicant to 

discuss with 

NOHOA.  

 

 Enter into written 

agreement approved 

by City Attorney 

related to the 

requirement to 

construct future 

parking stalls (“proof 

of parking” stalls) if 

City determines at a 

later date that proof of 

parking stalls are 

required to be 

constructed in order to 

satisfy parking 

requirements for site.  

 

 

 

TBD 

 

 

Developers 

Agreement 

 

 Provide and designate 

a minimum of 7 off-

street parking stalls for 

individuals with 

disabilities; provide at 

least 4 of those spots 

as part of Phase 1. 

 

 

Y 

Assumes some 

underground stalls. 

Will be a condition 

of Final Plan 

approval 

 

 All plans shall 

specifically be revised 

to show the location of 

the Shoreland 

Management Area on 

the Development Site, 

which shall be located 

based on the Ordinary 

High Water Level of 

 

 

 

N/A 

 

Not applicable to 

subject site per 

received DNR 

correspondence 

 

 

 

101



Page 9 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

Black Lake as 

determined by the 

Minnesota DNR. 

 All buildings and 

structures shall be 

shown on the plans 

and located in a 

manner that is 

compliant with all 

shoreland management 

area requirements, 

including setback 

requirements.  

 

 

 

N/A 

 

Not applicable to 

subject site per 

received DNR 

correspondence 

 

 

 

 

 Developer shall enter 

into a Stormwater 

Facilities Maintenance 

Agreement in a form 

acceptable to the City 

Attorney. 

In process 

of drafting 

To be approved as 

part of final plan 

approval process.  

 

 Developer shall 

provide easements for 

stormwater facilities 

and access to the same 

TBD Will be part of the 

developers 

agreement 

 

 The developer shall 

enter into a 

development contract 

with the City (the form 

of which shall be 

acceptable to the City) 

and post all necessary 

securities required by 

it and pay all required 

fees and costs 

including all City 

planning, engineering, 

and legal fees. 

In process 

of drafting 

To be approved as 

part of final plan 

approval process. 

Developers 

agreement. 

 

 Compliance with all 

applicable 

requirements of final 

plat approval. 

Y Developers 

agreement   

 

 Comply with and 

address all engineering 

recommendations 

found on pages 18 

 

 

Y 

Addressing during 

final plan review. 

Comments and 

changes to meet 

 

102



Page 10 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

through 29 of the City 

Staff report dated 

December 2, 2020.  

comments will be 

added to final 

approved plans. 

 Engineering 

Comments from 

December 2, 2020 

Staff report 

   

 The applicant’s 

engineer shall submit a 

pavement design with 

the final construction 

plans, in accordance 

with Geotechnical 

recommendations. The 

design shall be 

completed in 

accordance with the 

MnDOT Flexible 

pavement Design as 

outlined in 

the Road Design 

Manual. The street 

section shall be 

designed for a 

minimum 7-ton design 

and a 20-year design 

life. 

 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation into 

final plans 

 

 Proposed bituminous 

shall be placed in two 

lifts. The final lift shall 

be placed one 

construction season 

after the utilities have 

been installed within 

the street limits. 

 

Y 

 

 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation into 

final plans  

 

 

 

 Horizontal and vertical 

curves shall be 

designed to meet 

MnDOT standards for 

a 30-mph design 

speed. 

 

 

 

Y 

 

Geometrics will be 

reviewed and 

comments 

provided for 

incorporation into 

final plans 

 

 Plan and profile 

information shall be 

provided for roadways 

 

 

Y 

 

Comments 

provided for 

 

103



Page 11 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

and trail system as part 

of final construction 

plans. 

incorporation into 

final plans  

 

 The proposed site plan 

shall be submitted to 

the Lake Johanna fire 

department for review 

and comment. 

 

 

Y 

 

 

Plans will be 

reviewed, and any 

comments added to 

final plans  

 

 The Fire Marshal shall 

determine if a fire lane 

is required around the 

perimeter of the 

proposed building. 

The final plan shall 

provide geometrics 

illustrating 

emergency vehicles 

can  maneuver through 

the fire lane corridor 

as required by 

Fire Marshall. 

Illustration shall be 

provided using 

AutoTurn software or 

equal based on 

emergency vehicle 

type provided by Lake 

Johanna Fire Marshal. 

Proposed 

recommendations shall 

be incorporated into 

final plans. 

 

 

 Y 

 

 

Plans will be 

reviewed, and any 

comments added to 

final plans  

 

 

 Lake Johanna Fire 

Department indicated 

in a previous site plan 

review that streets 32 

feet or less shall be 

posted “No Parking 

Fire Lane” on one side 

of the 

road. Final plans shall 

identify this signage. 

 

 

Y 

Signing comments 

will be provided 

for incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 The final plan shall 

provide a typical 

 

 

 

 

 

104



Page 12 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

section for the 

combined 20-foot 

wide paved  

access/trail. The 

typical section shall be 

approved by NOHOA 

and the Lake Johanna 

Fire Department if it 

shall be utilized as an 

emergency vehicle 

access route. 

Y Plans will be 

reviewed, and 

comments added to 

final plans 

 Based on previous 

memorandum from 

Applicant, it was 

noted that no age 

restrictions are 

anticipated for the 

proposed project. It 

shall be determined if 

there is potential for 

school age residents 

and the need for 

school bus access to 

the development. Final 

plans shall illustrate 

the ability for a school 

bus to maneuver the 

site using AutoTurn 

software or equal. 

 

 

 

 

 

Y 

 

 

 

Applicant will 

provide school bus 

template. 

 

 Traffic Impacts: 

 

A Traffic Impact 

Memorandum, 

prepared by 

Westwood, has been 

submitted and 

identifies potential 

impacts associated 

with the proposed 74-

unit condominium 

building. 

 

a) According to 

industry standard Trip 

Generation 

 

 

 

 

 

Y 

 

 

 

 

 

Right turn lane into 

development has 

been added.  Any 

additional Ramsey 

County 

requirements will 

be added to final 

plans and any 

future plans. 

 

105



Page 13 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

calculations it appears 

that the county volume 

guideline for 

warranting turn lanes 

along Centerville 

Road will be 

exceeded. Based on 

the County guideline 

of ten (10) turning 

vehicles per hour 

either a northbound 

left turn lane and/or a 

southbound right turn 

lane may be 

warranted. 

 

b) In addition, the 

posted speed limit of 

50 mph along 

Centerville Road plus 

the turning volume 

may increase the 

likelihood for turn 

lane(s) being 

warranted by 

the County. Ramsey 

County may require 

that the cul-de-sac 

access intersection 

with Centerville Road 

may align with a 

future access on the 

east side. 

Requirement of 

acceleration lane, as 

shown, to be verified 

by Ramsey County. 

 

c) Ramsey County 

may require traffic 

counts at the 

intersection of 

Centerville Road and 

nearby intersection(s) 

to assess any warrants 

106



Page 14 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

for changes in traffic 

control. 

 

d) Signalization may 

likely not be warranted 

at the intersection with 

Centerville Road. Side 

street stop may likely 

be required for traffic 

control. 

 

e) Intersection Control 

Evaluation report may 

be required to 

determine appropriate 

intersection 

conditions. 

 

f) All further analysis 

required by the County 

should be included 

with future 

development 

submittals. 

Verification of 

proposed design from 

Ramsey County 

should also be 

provided with future 

development 

submittals. 

 The geometrics and 

alignment of the 

proposed roadway at 

the intersection of 

Centerville Road 

(CSAH No. 59) shall 

be reviewed and 

approved by Ramsey 

County Public Works. 

Verification from 

Ramsey County 

confirming geometrics 

and alignment of 

access should be 

 

 

 

 

 

Y 

Plans will be 

reviewed, and any 

comments added to 

final plans 

 

107



Page 15 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

provided with final 

construction plans. 

 It is recommended that 

an accessible sidewalk 

be extended from the 

proposed sidewalk 

along the front of the 

building to the 

proposed 10-foot wide 

bituminous trail. 

 

The sidewalk should 

be located within the 

islands on the east side 

of the proposed 

cul-de-sac as part of 

the Phase 1 project. 

 

 

 

 

 

Y 

Plans will be 

reviewed, and any 

comments added to 

final plans 

 

 It is recommended the 

proposed 20-foot wide 

bituminous trail and 

access drive to the lift 

station located easterly 

of the Phase 2 parking 

lot area be separated 

from the proposed 

curb, if the parking lot 

and curb are to be 

constructed with the 

phase 2 

improvements. This 

separation will allow 

construction of the 

curb in the future. 

 

 

Y 

 

 

Plans will be 

reviewed, and any 

comments added to 

final plans 

 

 The applicant shall 

verify the proposed 

primary trail alignment 

and termination points 

with NOHOA and 

provide written 

documentation of 

verification along with 

accompanying exhibit 

delineating agreed 

upon trail alignment. 

Final plans shall 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Y 

 

 

 

Final locations 

coordinated with 

NOHOA. 

 

108



Page 16 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

illustrate any 

alignment revisions as 

agreed upon by 

NOHOA. Trail 

alignment shall be 

cleared and graded at a 

width of 12-feet. 

Details of any 

resurfacing for trail 

areas shall be included 

in final plans. 

 The applicant to 

contact NOHOA and 

determine if the paved 

access/trail must be 

designed to meet ADA 

standards. Does the 

longitudinal slope of 

the trail need to be no 

greater than 5%? The 

final construction plan 

must reflect any 

required changes. 

 

 

 

 

 

n/a 

Trails are not 

public trails 

 

 Future/newly proposed 

trail 

connection/termination 

points shall be 

relocated outside of 

wetland setback and 

buffer areas or any 

trail alignment which 

encroaches on 

wetland setback or 

buffer areas shall be 

reviewed by City 

Engineer with 

consideration of 

recommendations 

from VLAWMO. 

 

 

 

 

 

Y 

 

Trails within buffer 

areas are 

acceptable to 

VLAWMO with 

locations 

confirmed during 

construction 

 

 

 The proposed storm 

water management and 

drainage system and 

site grading design 

shall conform to the 

requirements of the 

 

 

 

 

 

Y 

 

 

 

 

Plans and report 

will be reviewed, 

 

109



Page 17 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

current City of North 

Oaks Surface Water 

Management Plan and 

Chapter 156, the City 

Stormwater 

Management 

Ordinance. These 

requirements include 

but are not limited to 

volume control, rate 

control and water 

quality requirements 

to mitigate new 

impervious areas and 

sediment removal. A 

storm water 

management report, 

outlining the design 

analysis for the site, 

including exhibits and 

calculations, as 

required, shall be 

submitted for review 

and approval with the 

final construction 

plans which will 

contain details for all 

structures and 

proposed BMPs. 

Developer shall enter 

into a Stormwater 

Facilities Maintenance 

agreement in a form 

acceptable to the City 

Attorney. 

and any comments 

added to final 

plans. Management 

Plan to be 

reviewed and 

approved  

 

 

Details of stormwater 

basin design, including 

typical cross sections 

and details for 

outlet structures shall 

be included in the final 

construction plans and 

shall adhere to 

recommendations 

found within the 

 

 

 

 

 

Y 

 

 

 

 

Plans and report 

under review, any 

comments added to 

final plans. 

Management Plan 

to be reviewed and 

 

110



Page 18 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

Geotechnical report 

based on soil borings 

and field verified 

ground water 

elevations. 

approved. Part of 

Developers 

agreement 

 The final plans shall 

identify and provide a 

graded access bench to 

and around the 

stormwater pond/basin 

for future 

maintenance. The 

access surface to be a 

minimum width of 10 

feet at a minimum 

cross slope of 3 

percent and a 

maximum 

longitudinal slope of 

10 percent. AutoTurn 

shall be used to 

analyze and design the 

horizontal alignment 

based on a tandem 

axle dump truck. The 

proposed access shall 

be reviewed and 

approved by NOHOA. 

 

 

 

 

 

Y 

 

 

 

 

 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals. No 

information 

received from 

NOHOA on review 

and approval of 

proposed access.  

 

 Provide skimmer 

structure details for 

storm water outlets 

and with the final 

construction plans. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Staff recommends 

storm sewer structures 

with sumps and SAFL 

baffles to minimize 

downstream 

sedimentation. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 The proposed storm 

sewer and site grading 

final design and 

construction plans 

shall be reviewed and 

approved by the City 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

111



Page 19 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

Engineer, with 

consideration of 

recommendations 

from VLAWMO. 

 Identify the emergency 

overflow locations and 

elevations (EOF) on 

the final grading plan 

for all surface water 

features, including 

wetlands, ponds, 

swales, or ditches, 

based on actual field 

topographic survey 

information. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Provide earthwork 

volume calculations 

with the construction 

plan submittal to the 

City. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 A single storm water 

pond is shown for the 

site. Is the Phase 2 

area, including the 

parking and roof 

drainage, to drain to 

the proposed pond. 

Does storm sewer 

need to extend from 

Phase 1 to serve the 

Phase 2 area? Is 

additional ponding 

required in the Phase 2 

area? The applicant’s 

Engineer shall address 

these items with the 

final plan design and 

development. 

 

 

Y 

Addressed in 

Stormwater 

Report. Will 

review and 

comments will be 

added for inclusion 

in final plan 

approvals. AE2 

report. 

 

 The proposed design 

for the filter bench will 

require modification 

for the final plan 

development. The 

proposed tile inverts 

within the filter bench 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

112



Page 20 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

as shown are lower 

than the proposed 

invert of the outlet 

control structure. 

 Provide a skimmer 

system and outlet 

control structure detail 

for the pond outlet 

pipe with the final 

construction plans. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 We recommend 

additional storm 

sewer, including two 

catch basins, be added. 

The catch basins 

should be located at 

approximately station 

3+25 if the minimum 

required build on the 

structures can be met. 

This will allow 

treatment of additional 

storm water runoff in 

the proposed pond. 

 

 

Y 

Designed for 

adequate structure 

location, with 

flume section for 

runoff into SED 

basin.  Will review 

and comments will 

be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals. 

Placed in areas 

available, added 

flume for drainage. 

 

 The plan identifies a 

proposed low point 

(LP) in the street at 

approximate station 

1+25. 

This low point is in the 

area of the proposed 

“surface bridge”. The 

applicant shall address 

the drainage in this 

area with the final plan 

development. 

 

 

Y 

Designed for 

adequate structure 

location, with 

flume section for 

runoff into SED 

basin.  Will review 

and comments will 

be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Edits of the 

construction notes will 

be required with the 

final plan 

development. 

Applicant’s Engineer 

to contact the City 

Engineer to discuss. A 

reference to 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

113



Page 21 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

compliance with the 

latest edition of the 

City Engineers of 

Minnesota- “CEAM 

Specification” for the 

proposed utility 

improvements shall be 

noted on the plan. 

Technical provisions 

for site specific items 

shall also be noted. 

 A “sed basin” is 

proposed near the 

street entrance at 

Centerville Road. 

Final plans 

shall address the 

following comments: 

a) Clarification shall 

be provided, along 

with construction 

details for whether the 

basin is to be an 

infiltration or filtration 

basin and how 

sediment will be 

controlled and 

construction methods, 

cross-section and 

outlet. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Proposed trail routes 

shall be graded such 

that stormwater is not 

conveyed across the 

surface of the trail, but 

directed to a drainage 

swale and away from 

the trail surface. 

Y WILL BE 

CAPTURED 

DURING 

BUILDING PLAN 

REVIEWS AND 

CLARIFIED 

DURING 

CONSTRUCTION 

NOHOA wants 

“grass” trail 

 

 Erosion control 

measures, including 

silt fence placement 

shall be reviewed as 

part of 

Y Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

114



Page 22 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

the final plan 

application. Double 

silt fence shall be 

installed adjacent to all 

wetlands or approved 

equivalent. 

 Staff recommends the 

applicant review the 

location of existing 

trees with the final 

grading design to 

determine if any trees 

can be saved at, or 

near the proposed 

cut/fill limits and in 

proposed green space 

areas. Final 

construction plans 

shall 

identify existing trees 

to be saved and 

protected in 

accordance with City 

Forester 

recommendations. 

 

 

Y 

Will coordinate 

with Staff and be 

part of developers 

agreement 

 

 A Geotechnical report 

shall be submitted 

with the final 

construction plans. 

Report shall 

indicate soil boring 

locations which will 

be illustrated on final 

plans, including 

ground 

water conditions at 

locations which align 

with proposed road, 

stormwater 

management 

facilities and utilities. 

The applicant’s 

Geotechnical Engineer 

shall provide a 

 

 

Y 

Reports for land 

bridge and 

site/structures, and 

plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals. 2 

reports. 

 

115



Page 23 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

recommended 

separation from the 

basement floor to the 

estimated groundwater 

surface elevation. We 

recommend lowest 

floor elevation for the 

development be 

located a minimum of 

4 feet above the 

estimated ground 

water level, or as 

recommended by the 

Soils Engineer. 

Restrictive lowest 

floor building 

elevation shall be 

identified on the final 

grading construction 

plans. Report shall 

also include 

infiltration rates and 

design 

recommendations for 

the any proposed 

infiltration areas 

based on applicable 

borings. 

 Proposed grades 

around the perimeter 

of the proposed 

condominium 

buildings shall 

meet the requirements 

of the State Building 

Code. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Staff recommends a 

minimum slope of 2.0 

percent on proposed 

lawn/sod surfaces and 

1.5 percent on 

pavement surfaces. 

These minimums shall 

be checked and 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

116



Page 24 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

provided on final 

plans. 

 The final plans shall 

identify and provide a 

graded access bench to 

and around all 

Ponds/basins for 

future maintenance. 

The access surface to 

be a minimum width 

of 10 feet at a 

minimum cross slope 

of 3% and a maximum 

longitudinal slope of 

10 

percent. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Staff recommends that 

the 100-year high 

water elevation for all 

site surface water 

features, be 

determined and shown 

on the final grading 

plan. 

 

 

Y 

In compliance with 

DNR 

Correspondence 

 

 Riprap will not be 

required at the inlet 

end of proposed 

culverts unless the 

velocity of the flow at 

the inlet requires this 

type of erosion 

protection. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 A drain tile system 

shall be provided on 

the street subgrade 

surface at the street 

low 

points, per 

Geotechnical report, if 

poorly draining 

subgrade soil type 

exists. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals and 

evaluated during 

construction 

 

 Final grading plan 

should include high 

point elevations, grade 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

 

117



Page 25 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

breaks, typical slopes, 

and drainage arrows. 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 Final construction 

plans shall include 

locations and details 

for all proposed site 

sedimentation and 

erosion control BMPs, 

including plans for 

temporary stormwater 

management BMPs 

and protection of 

permanent BMPs 

during construction. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 The proposed storm 

sewer and site grading 

final design and 

construction plans 

shall be reviewed and 

approved by the City 

Engineer with 

consideration of 

VLAWMO 

recommendations. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Proposed “land 

bridge’ details shall be 

provided in final plans 

which illustrate the 

proposed cross-section 

and construction 

materials per 

geotechnical 

recommendations and 

VLAWMO 

recommendations. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Recommend a 

minimum sanitary 

sewer pipe slope of 

0.5% (typical). Also, 

provide a 

minimum 0.1-foot 

drop thru each 

manhole (typical). The 

drop at MH 1 should 

be a minimum of 0.2 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

118



Page 26 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

feet due to the acute 

angle of the pipes. 

 The pipe material for 

the sewer service 

extension from the 

proposed manhole 

towards the building 

shall be revised from 

SDR 35 PVC pipe to 

Schedule 40. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Applicant’s Engineer 

to ensure each sewer 

service stub proposed 

pipe gradient and 

stub elevation will 

serve the proposed 

building lowest floor 

elevation as a part of 

the 

final design. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals. 

Stub is plugged at 

905.0. FF elevation 

is 922.0. 

 

 The applicant’s 

Engineer shall review 

and discuss the Lift 

Station design with 

White 

Bear Township’s 

(WBT) Public Works 

department as a part of 

the development of the 

final design and plans. 

For example, discuss 

items such as, but not 

limited to: 

 

a. Obtain typical lift 

station detail 

 

b. List of approved 

pump suppliers 

 

c. Exterior lighting 

requirements 

 

d. Required safety 

equipment 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

119



Page 27 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

 

e. Bollards, including 

proposed location 

 

f. Grade design at lift 

station, including 

proposed finished 

grade elevations of 

hatches- to direct 

storm water away 

from the hatch. 

 

g. Any other items 

suggested by WBT 

related to the lift 

station design 

 The proposed 

forcemain alignment 

shall be revised in the 

area east of the 

proposed 

lift station. The 

forcemain shall not be 

placed beneath the 

proposed retaining 

wall. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Applicant shall 

consider realigning 

proposed sewer and 

water lines outside of 

the 

roadway, once the 

lines enter the site 

(past approximate 

roadway station 2+50) 

for ease of future 

utility maintenance. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Provide a plan and 

profile for the 

proposed sanitary 

sewer and forcemain 

as part of the final 

construction plans. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 An air release valve 

and structure shall be 

 

 

Plans under 

review, comments 

 

120



Page 28 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

provided at all high 

points, and a clean-out 

device and structure at 

low points in the 

forcemain alignment. 

Y will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 Final plans shall 

identify details and 

notes for the proposed 

connection of the 

forcemain to the 

existing sanitary sewer 

manhole including, but 

not limited to core 

drilling, drop section, 

and manhole bench 

reconstruction, if 

required by WBT. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Final sanitary sewer 

construction plans 

shall be reviewed and 

approved by the City 

Engineer and by White 

Bear Township’s 

Public Works 

Department. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 The proposed 

watermain is shown to 

connect to an existing 

watermain located 

approximately 300 feet 

easterly of Centerville 

Road. However, the 

preliminary utility 

plan and the Existing 

Conditions plan do not 

show an existing 

watermain in this area. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, applicant 

working with WBT 

to extend 

watermain for 

connection. 16” 

loop east of 

Centerville before 

construction. 

 

 The Existing 

Conditions plan does 

identify a 16-inch 

trunk watermain 

located approximately 

1200 feet north of the 

proposed street 

entrance. Applicant 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, applicant 

working with WBT 

to extend 

watermain for 

connection 

 

121



Page 29 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

and their Engineer to 

determine the route of 

the proposed 

watermain to connect 

to an existing 

watermain as a part of 

the final plan 

development. 

 A dual watermain 

system is proposed to 

create a looped 

watermain system to 

avoid 

shutdown of the 

domestic and fire 

protection to the 

proposed building 

when maintenance, or 

repair work is required 

in the future. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 A profile of the 

proposed watermain 

shall be provided with 

the final plans. An air 

release device, 

including a fire 

hydrant, shall be 

placed at all high 

points in the system. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Fire hydrant locations 

shall be reviewed and 

approved by the Lake 

Johanna Fire Marshal. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, FD 

comments will be 

added for inclusion 

in final plan 

approvals 

 

 Verify 20 psi residual 

pressure is provided at 

all proposed fire 

hydrants, including at 

temporary hydrants 

placed at phase limits, 

at the fire flow 

required by the Lake 

Johanna Fire Marshall. 

The applicant shall 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, FD 

comments will be 

added for inclusion 

in final plan 

approvals 

 

122



Page 30 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

coordinate flow tests 

of the existing 

water system with 

White Bear Township 

Public Works. The 

water supply shall also 

meet the required 

residual pressure for 

the building fire 

protection system at 

the flow 

required to serve each 

phase of the building. 

A fire pump shall be 

provided within the 

building, if required. 

The applicant shall 

submit design 

calculations to the Fire 

Marshal and the City 

Engineer with the final 

plan application 

showing these 

conditions have been 

met. 

 The applicant’s 

Engineer shall contact 

the City Engineer to 

discuss the proposed 

gate valve location as 

a part of the final plan 

development. In our 

opinion, four 

additional gate valves 

are required near street 

station 7+50 to be able 

to isolate the system, 

including the proposed 

fire hydrant, in order 

to reduce the risk of 

shutting down the 

water supply to the 

building in the event 

maintenance or repair 

work of the watermain 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

123



Page 31 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

is required in the 

future. 

 The final plans shall 

identify the proposed 

domestic water service 

and fire service to 

serve the building 

unless a combined 

service is proposed. 

This design must also 

be reviewed and 

approved by the Fire 

Marshal. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals. 

Building plan 

review will address 

services 

 

 A post indicator valve 

in the yard, or a wall 

mounted indicator 

valve shall be shown 

on the final plan. The 

proposed location of 

the Fire Department 

Connection (FDC) 

shall also be shown. 

The proposed design 

for these items must 

be reviewed and 

approved by the Fire 

Marshal. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, FD 

comments will be 

added for inclusion 

in final plan 

approvals 

 

 The applicant shall 

determine if the fire 

protection and 

domestic water 

systems for Phase 1 

can be connected 

internally in the 

building to the Phase 2 

system to 

complete a looped 

water system. This 

design will reduce the 

risk of shutting down 

the water supply to 37 

units in each phase of 

the building. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals. 

Coordination with 

Fire Marshall 

 

 The final plan shall 

identify the proposed 

 

 

Plans under 

review, comments 

 

124



Page 32 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

utility improvements 

and easement limits on 

the landscaping plan. 

Proposed landscape 

items shall be 

relocated if there is a 

conflict with the 

proposed utilities and 

easement. 

Y will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 All small utilities 

including, but not 

limited to gas, 

telephone, electric 

shall be placed 

underground in 

accordance with the 

provisions of all 

applicable City 

ordinances. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals. 

Captured during 

construction. 

 

 All utilities to be 

located in the 

floodplain shall be 

flood proofed in 

accordance with the 

building code or 

elevated above the 

flood protection 

elevation. 

 

 

 

n/a 

No flood plain 

elevations exist on-

site. Standard 

discussions with 

utility companies 

for design and 

construction. 

 

 Existing Conditions 

Map does not reflect 

the current wetland 

delineation prepared 

by 

Kjolhaug 

Environmental 

Services (KES), dated 

December 6, 2018. 

Existing Conditions 

shall be updated to 

reflect information 

confirmed by KES and 

applicable 

field verified 

elevations as required 

below. 

 

 

Y 

In compliance with 

latest DNR Letter. 

Part of wetland 

banking with 

VLAWMO. 

 

125



Page 33 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

 Figure 5 of the 

Wetland Delineation 

Report, dated 12/6/18, 

indicates DNR 

wetlands are located to 

the west and south of 

the proposed 

development. The 

figure indicates DNR 

wetland 62-19 P 

(Wetland delineated 

and shown on DNR 

PWI map as part of 

Black Lake Public 

Water) is located to 

the west and 62-103 

W is located to the 

south. Please note the 

following: 

 

a. The DNR recorded 

Ordinary High Water 

(OHW) elevation for 

wetland 62-19 P is 

899.4. 

 

b. The OHW elevation 

for wetland 62-103 W 

is not readily available 

via DNR 

documentation. 

Applicant shall contact 

the DNR to determine 

if the OHW elevation 

for this basin is 

documented with the 

DNR, or if the OHW 

limit has been 

determined in the 

field. The OHW limit 

for this wetland must 

be 

provided and/or 

determined by the 

DNR. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Y 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In compliance with 

latest DNR Letter  

 

126



Page 34 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

 

c. The applicant shall 

have the DNR 

determine/confirm the 

following and provide 

documentation to the 

City and VLAWMO: 

 

• Are Wet Basins 1C 

and 1D, as identified 

on the Existing 

Conditions plan 

and delineated by 

KES, part of DNR 

water/wetland 62-19 

P? 

 

• Are Wet Basins A 

and 1B, as identified 

on the Existing 

Conditions plan 

and delineated by 

KES, part of DNR 

wetland 62-103 W? 

 

d. Applicant’s 

surveyor shall field 

locate the DNR 

OHWL 

elevation/limits 

adjacent to the 

proposed Island Field 

site boundary in the 

field, based on 

information and 

directive provided by 

the DNR for 62-19P 

and 62-103W. The 

USGS benchmark 

datum used by the 

DNR shall be used. 

Any applicable 

setbacks and shoreland 

overlay boundaries 

shall be shown on all 

127



Page 35 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

construction plans and 

final plans for Phase 1 

and all future 

development plans for 

phase 2. 

 

e. As applicable, the 

150-foot setback from 

the DNR OWHL of 

Black Lake, per PDA 

Appendix 1 shall be 

indicated on all plans. 

 Proposed potential 

wetland impacts, 

mitigation, 

replacement plans and 

conformance to WCA 

requirements shall be 

reviewed and 

approved by 

VLAWMO as the 

LGU. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Final plans shall 

illustrate the required 

width of buffer strips 

along the perimeter of 

wetlands, and the 

proposed ponds in 

accordance with City-

approved VLAWMO 

policies. The final 

construction plans 

shall identify the 

buffer limits and any 

buffer plantings or 

protection per 

VLAWMO Water 

Management Policy; 

buildings and other 

structures shall be 

moved as necessary to 

comply with all 

applicable City and 

VLAWMO policies 

and requirements. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

128



Page 36 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

 EOF locations into 

wetlands shall be 

reinforced according 

to city approved 

VLAWMO 

recommendations. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Final plans shall 

include details for 

restoration of wetland 

buffer areas per 

VLAWMO policies. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Any additional 

wetland delineation 

requirements shall be 

confirmed with 

VLAWMO as 

the LGU and provided 

as part of final 

construction plans. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 A current wetland 

functional assessment 

(Minnesota Routine 

Assessment Method 

(MnRAM) report) for 

all wetlands identified 

in the Wetland 

Delineation Report, 

prepared by Kjolhaug 

Environmental 

Services, Dated 

December 6, 2018, 

shall be provided and 

plans shall be revised 

to illustrate applicable 

buffer widths per the 

MnRAM report. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Any disturbance or 

planned construction 

work not shown on 

preliminary plans 

within 

OHWL of DNR 

identified Public 

Waters and/or Public 

Waters Wetlands shall 

 

 

n/a 

In compliance with 

latest DNR Letter 

 

129



Page 37 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

be detailed on final 

construction plans. 

Comments from DNR 

regarding work and 

any necessary 

approvals/permits 

shall be provided to 

the City with Final 

Plan application. 

 Final plans shall 

illustrate design and 

details for the 

proposed wetland 

crossing/surface 

bridge. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Local street signage, 

including necessary 

stop condition signage, 

meeting City of North 

Oaks standards shall 

be included in final 

construction plans. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Fire lane signage shall 

be provided in 

accordance with the 

requirements of the 

Lake Johanna Fire 

Department. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, FD 

comments will be 

added for inclusion 

in final plan 

approvals 

 

 

 

 Proposed Drainage 

easements shall fully 

encompass all 

stormwater 

management facilities 

as well as emergency 

overflow routes for 

ponds, wetlands, 

access routes for the 

entire site. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Easements for basins 

shall cover the 100-

year HWL elevation as 

constructed. 

 

 

n/a 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 

130



Page 38 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

 The preliminary plans 

do not identify an 

easement over the 

proposed storm sewer 

extending from the 

proposed storm water 

pond to the south. This 

20-foot wide easement 

shall be provided as a 

part of the final 

easement preparation 

and illustrated on final 

plans. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Applicant’s surveyor 

to verify all proposed 

easements are centered 

on the proposed 

utilities as shown on 

the final plan as a part 

of the final easement 

development. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added to 

the final plan 

approvals. Changes 

will be captured 

during 

construction.  

 

 Conservation 

easements shall be 

provided to cover 

buffer strip areas, if 

recommended by 

VLAWMO. The 

easement documents 

shall conform to the 

requirements of 

VLAWMO. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Easements for 

roadways, drainage 

swales, utilities, 

ponds, wetlands,etc. 

shall be dedicated on 

the final RLS as 

shown in the 

preliminary 

plan/preliminary plat 

and shall 

be determined to be 

sufficient for all 

necessary site 

drainage, utility and 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

131



Page 39 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

roadway access and 

maintenance. A 

roadway easement ten 

feet outside back of 

curb, for snow storage 

and maintenance is 

recommended. 

 Provide easements as 

necessary for the 

proposed off-site 

utility improvements. 

 

 

n/a 

Plans under 

review, watermain 

connect is off-site 

 

 The final design and 

construction plans 

shall be reviewed and 

approved by the City 

Engineer. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Copies of all approved 

permits (Minnesota 

Department of Health 

for watermain, MPCA 

for sanitary sewer and 

NPDES, Ramsey 

County, VLAWMO, 

etc.) shall be provided 

to the City Engineer 

upon receipt from each 

agency. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, permits 

will be submitted 

as received.  

 

 VLAWMO review and 

comment of Final 

construction 

documents and 

accompanying 

analysis and 

recommendations shall 

be provided to the city 

prior to application for 

final approval. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

  

 All final construction 

plans shall include 

applicable plan 

legends to facilitate 

comprehensive plan 

review. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

132



Page 40 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

 Plans shall be revised 

such that final 

construction plans 

include the following: 

a. Clearly illustrate 

construction phase 

limits applicable on 

each plan sheet. 

b. Removal plan shall 

be added, if necessary, 

to illustrate details of 

the removal 

of any underground 

facilities. 

c. Proposed street 

name. 

d. Existing trees to be 

saved. 

e. Construction notes, 

including a reference 

to compliance with the 

latest edition 

of the “MnDOT 

Standard 

Specifications for 

Construction” for site 

plan improvements. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Prior to final plan 

submittal, provide 

diligence in plan 

review to resolve any 

Preliminary 

plan typos, 

inconsistencies, and 

erroneous notes. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Existing conditions 

plan shall include field 

verification dates for 

topographic survey. 

Please verify 

elevations in the field 

as part of final plan 

development. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Please remove all 

gender specific 

 

 

Plans under 

review, comments 

 

133



Page 41 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

pronoun references on 

the preliminary 

engineering 

plans. 

Y will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 Final construction 

plans shall incorporate 

redlined engineering 

plan review by City 

Engineer, as 

applicable. 

 

 

Y 

Plans under 

review, comments 

will be added for 

inclusion in final 

plan approvals 

 

 Engineer requests all 

design calculations: 

sanitary sewer, water, 

and stormwater water 

Y Received by City 

Engineer under 

review 

 

     

 Other Requirements 

to be Satisfied at a 

Future Date 

   

 Prior to building 

permit issuance for the 

Phase 2 condominium 

building addition, 

Parcels 1 and 2 shall 

be legally combined 

such that the side lot 

line is eliminated and 

does not intersect the 

building 

 

 

 

n/a 

 

 

 

To occur at future 

date.  

 

 Where practical, the 

applicant shall comply 

with the following 

recommendations of 

the City Forester in an 

effort to preserve/save 

trees upon the subject 

site:  

 

a. Fell all trees to 

be removed 

towards the 

centerline of 

the street to 

limit injury to 

saved trees. 

Y City Staff to 

monitor current 

and future 

compliance. 

 

134



Page 42 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

 

b. Install tree 

protection 

fence 

immediately 

after tree 

removals. 

Make sure 

fence is 

respected by 

contractors on 

site and 

immediately 

raise fence if it 

is 

compromised. 

Pre-

construction 

meetings are an 

excellent time 

to implement 

the seriousness 

of tree 

preservation 

efforts and 

penalties for 

violations. 

 

c. If grade 

changes are 

excessive 

retaining walls 

may be a 

viable option. 

 

d. Do not place 

fill around save 

trees. 

 

e. If save trees 

are going to be 

preserved 

within the 

construction 

limits armor 

135



Page 43 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

trees with 

2X4’s to 

reduce the 

chance of 

mechanical 

injury to the 

trunk. 

 

f. After 

harvesting, 

blow chipped 

tops of trees 

along tree 

protection 

fencing to help 

reduce soil 

compaction 

from 

construction 

equipment and 

moderate soil 

temperatures 

and moisture 

levels. 

 

g. Before 

preserving save 

trees on edges 

make sure they 

are healthy 

(good 

structure, no 

decay, etc.) and 

will not 

become a 

hazard tree 

within a few 

years. An 

arborist or City 

Forester 

assessment 

may be 

justified for 

individual 

trees. 

136



Page 44 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

 

h. Root cutting 

and growth 

hormone 

regulator 

treatments for 

high-value 

trees are also 

options that 

could be 

implemented. 

 

i. Brushing of 

understory 

material 

outside of 

construction 

limits may be 

an option since 

it is 99 percent 

buckthorn. An 

inventory to 

look for any 

nonbuckthorn 

species could 

be incorporated 

to mark and 

avoid those 

shrubs during 

buckthorn 

removal. Care 

should be 

taken to 

minimize 

impacts to soil 

during this 

process. 

Scraping off of 

any topsoil 

should be 

prohibited as 

90 percent of 

the tree’s roots 

are within the 

137



Page 45 of 45 

Island Field Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

Last Updated 7-6-21 

 

top one foot of 

soil. 

 

j. Follow the oak 

wilt protocol as 

recommended 

by the City 

Forester.  

 Proposed monument 

sign shall comply with 

conditions listed in 

Resolution No. 1411 

n/a Compliance 

required at time of 

construction of 

sign.  

 

 

 

138



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. 1427 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING FINAL PLANS/PLAT/SUBDIVISION FOR 

ISLAND FIELD SITE 

 

 

 

 WHEREAS, North Oaks Company, LLC (the “Developer”) has applied for final 

plan/plat (subdivision) approval for the subdivision of certain real property owned by North 

Oaks Company LLC, identified as Site H in the 1999 East Oaks Planned Development 

Agreement commonly referred to as the “Island Field Site” and located within the City of 

North Oaks, Ramsey County, Minnesota and legally described as follows: 

 

  Tract D, REGISTERED LAND SURVEY NO. 561 

 

 WHEREAS, Tract D, REGISTERED LAND SURVEY NO. 561 is subject to the 

terms and conditions of the 1999 East Oaks Planned Development Agreement, as 

subsequently amended (the “East Oaks PDA”) and is zoned Residential Commercial 

Mixed—Planned Unit Development (RCM-PUD); and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1411 adopted by the North Oaks City 

Council on December 17, 2020, the City Council approved the preliminary plan/plat 

(subdivision) of the Island Field Site; and  

 

WHEREAS, Developer subsequently submitted an Application dated March 24, 

2021 for final plan/plat (subdivision) approval to the City with final revised documents 

received on  May 7, 2021; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the application for final plan/plat 

(subdivision) approval for the Island Field site.   

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 

North Oaks, Ramsey County, Minnesota, having reviewed the Application for Final 

Plan/Plat (subdivision) and related materials in the July 6, 2021 Council Packet hereby 

APPROVES the Application for Final Plan/Plat (subdivision) for the real property legally 

described above and commonly known as the Island Field Site, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

1. The final plans listed below and on file with the city are hereby APPROVED, 

subject to completion of the required revisions by the City Engineer and such 

future revisions as may be permitted by the City Engineer: 

 

• Existing Conditions prepared by Kurth Surveying, Inc. and dated 

March 19, 2021 

139



 2 

 

• Final Plat/Plan prepared by Kurth Surveying, Inc. and dated March 19, 

2021 

 

• Final Plat/Easement Plan prepared by Kurth Surveying, Inc. and dated 

March 19, 2021 

 

• Final Site Plan prepared by Civil Site Group and dated August 19, 

2020 (note: the Final Site Plan retains the same date of preparation as 

the approved Preliminary Site Plan) 

 

• Final Grading and Erosion Plan prepared by Sathre- Bergquist, Inc. 

and dated March 19, 2021 

 

• Final Utility Plan prepared by Sathre- Bergquist, Inc. and dated March 

19, 2021 

 

• Final Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Plans prepared by Sathre- 

Bergquist, Inc. and dated March 19, 2021 

 

• Final Storm Sewer Plan prepared by Sathre- Bergquist, Inc. and dated 

March 19, 2021 

 

• Final Street Plan prepared by Sathre- Bergquist, Inc. and dated March 

19, 2021 

 

• Final Landscape Plans prepared by Civil Site Group and dated August 

19, 2020 and Loucks dated October 21,2020 (note: the Final 

Landscape Plans retain the same date of preparation as the approved 

Preliminary Landscape Plan)  

 

• Building Perspectives prepared by Firm Ground Architects and 

Engineers (note: the drawings are not dated) 

 

• Final Building Elevations by Firm Ground Architects and Engineers 

(note: the drawings are not dated) 

 

2. Final plans shall be revised to address the City Engineer’s and City Planner’s 

comments.  Upon revision, final plans and any necessary associated documents 

shall be provided to the City.  

 

3. The Phase 1 condominium building shall maintain a minimum 20-foot setback 

from the adjacent property line to the north.  To ensure compliance with such 

structure setback requirement, the Final Site Plan shall be modified to illustrate 

the boundaries of Tracts A and B. 

 

140



 3 

4. Prior to building permit issuance for the Phase 2 condominium building 

addition, Tracts A and B shall be combined such that the side lot line is 

eliminated and does not intersect the building to avoid the creation of a 

nonconforming structure setback condition. 

 

5. The following minimum principal structure setbacks shall be satisfied: 

 

Principal Building to Roadway Easements: 

 

Front:                          15 feet 

Side:                            20 feet 

Rear:                            20 feet 

 

Principal Building to Adjacent Principal Buildings: 

 

Front to front:             40 feet 

Side to side:                15 feet 

Rear to rear:                50 feet 

 

Wetlands:                    30 feet 

 

Structures to Ordinary High-Water Level (of Black Lake):  150 feet 

 

6. The developer shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City, the 

form of which shall be acceptable to the City, and post all necessary securities 

required by it and pay all required fees and costs, including all City planning, 

engineering, and legal fees. 

 

7. The Development Agreement shall be recorded against each of the Tracts 

created by the subdivision of the Island Field Parel prior to conveyance of any 

Tract to a third party.  

 

8. Addendum-1N to the Joint Powers Agreement with White Bear Township 

relating to the Island Field Development is approved. 

 

9. The street name shall be Hill Farm Road.  

 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks this 8th day of July, 2021. 

 

 

Ayes:    Nays: 

     

      By:  ________________________________  

       Kara Ries 

      Its: Mayor 

Attested: 

141



 4 

 

 

By:  ________________________________  

 Kevin Kress 

Its: City Administrator 

 

 

142



143



144



145



146



147



148



Jack Y. Perry
612.977.8497 
JPerry@Taftlaw.com 

2200 IDS Center, 80 South 8th Street
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
Tel: 612.977.8400 | Fax: 612.977.8650 
taftlaw.com 

Affirmative Action, Equal Opportunity Employer

June 30, 2021 

VIA EMAIL 

City Council of the City of North Oaks, Minnesota 
c/o City Administrator Kevin Kress 
100 Village Center Drive 
North Oaks, MN 55127 

Re: North Oaks Company, LLC's application for final plan/final plat approval for 
the Island Field Development Site (Site H) of the February 11, 1999 East Oaks 
Planned Development Agreement (PDA) 

Dear Mayor and Councilmembers: 

This letter is sent on behalf of the North Oaks Company, LLC (Company) with regard to 
City of North Oaks' (City) previously noticed, though since cancelled, June 28, 2021 Special City 
Council (Council) meeting on Company's March 24, 2021 application for final plan/final plat 
(Final Application) approval for the Island Field Development Site (Site H) of the February 11, 
1999 East Oaks Planned Development Agreement (PDA). Based on the materials in the Agenda 
packet for the above referenced special meeting, it appears that Councilmember Tom Watson 
(Watson) disagrees with the prior decisions of the Council to enter into both (1) the Seventh 
Amendment to the PDA and (2) the Eight Amendment to the PDA.  The Company is concerned 
that, based on this disagreement, Watson may attempt to persuade the Council that (1) his 
disagreement with these prior Council actions justifies a "reversal" of the prior Council's December 
17, 2020 determinations, in Resolution No. 1410 and the 8th Amendment to the PDA entered into 
pursuant thereto and in Resolution No. 1411, that 74 residential units and a maximum building 
height of 47 feet are allowed on the Island Field Development Site as part of the first item on the 
Agenda and (2) such "reversal" provides a basis for denying the Final Application as part of the 
second item on the Agenda.   

The Company sincerely hopes that it is misreading this intent.  But, out of an abundance 
of caution, the Company sets forth below the contractual and legal bars to such an intent. 

A. THE CONTRACTUAL BAR 

149



City Council of the City of North Oaks, Minnesota 
June 29, 2021 
Page 2 

With its October 21, 2020 application for preliminary plan/preliminary plat (Preliminary 
Application) approval for the Island Field Development Site (Site H) of the PDA, the Company 
sought preliminary approval of a 74 residential unit condominium on the site on the basis that (1) 
the PDA provides for 35 residential units at the Island Field Development Site, (2) the PDA 
authorizes density transfers/permitted density increases of up to 30% at the Island Field 
Development Site (10.5 units), (3) the PDA allows up to 21 acres of property within the RCM-
PUD Zoning District to be developed for commercial uses and provides that, for each acre of such 
commercial development the Company agrees to forego, the Company may develop five additional 
residential units and (4) the Company agrees to forgo the right to develop its remaining 5.73 acres 
of RCM-PUD Zoned Property for commercial uses, thereby giving the Company the right to 
develop 28 — i.e., 5.73 acres x 5/acre — additional residential units on the Island Field 
Development Site.  Then-Councilmember Reis objected to this request for various reasons, 
including without limitation her belief that: 

(1) The PDA did not give the Company the right to "stack" a density 
transfer/permitted density increase and the conversion of commercial use 
rights to additional residential units on the same site; 

(2) That the Company then held fewer than 5.73 acres of land that was eligible 
for commercial development under the PDA; and 

(3) Whether the 10.5 unit density transfer/permitted density increase could not 
be rounded up to 11 units.   

Notwithstanding then-Councilmember Reis' objections, the Council adopted  Resolution 
Nos. 1410-11, which approved of the Preliminary Application with its proposed 74 residential 
units and proposed 43 foot building height.  In addition, before approving the Preliminary 
Application with Resolution No. 1411, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 1410, which 
approved and authorized the City's execution of an 8th Amendment to the PDA with the Company.  
In the 8th Amendment, the City and the Company agreed that, among other things, 74 residential 
units may be developed on the Island Field Development Site and a building height of 47 feet is 
permitted on the Island Field Development Site. 

The PDA, as amended, is a contract which "shall be binding on the city and the 
owner/applicant and their successors and assigns."  See § 151.056(B)(b)2.b of the North Oaks 
Zoning Code and § 19.4 of the PDA.  If the Council were to deny the Company's Final Application 
on the basis that 74 residential units are not permitted on the site, then the City would be blatantly 
breaching its contractual agreement with the Company, and the Company would be entitled to 
pursue any remedies available under the PDA, at law, in equity or by statute, including without 
limitation a claim for damages. 

B. THE LEGAL BAR

150



City Council of the City of North Oaks, Minnesota 
June 29, 2021 
Page 3 

Even if the Council believes that one or more of its prior decisions with respect to (1) the 
Seventh Amendment to the PDA, (2) the Eighth Amendment to the PDA and (3) the Preliminary 
Approval were not supported by the record that was before it at the time those decisions were made, 
the Council does not have standing to challenge its approval of the Preliminary Application — i.e.,
its December 17, 2020 approval of Resolution Nos. 1410-11.  The Minnesota Court of Appeals in 
Shetka v. Aitkin County, No. C7-96-2147, 1997 WL 118134, at *1 (Minn. App. 1997), so ruled. 

In rejecting Aitkin County's "standing" to raise its similar argument for a "remand[] to the 
district court for an opportunity to augment the record" for its district court reversed conditional 
use permit denial, the Minnesota Court of Appeals addressed, as follows, this very issue 24 years 
ago: 

Unless there is a statute that provides otherwise, a party does not have standing to 
challenge a governmental action unless that party is "aggrieved" – i.e. adversely 
affected by the action.  Matter of State Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co., 392 N.W.2d 558, 
564 (Minn. App. 1986).  In quasi-judicial proceedings, in order to be "aggrieved," 
the party must not be part of the decisional process.  City of St. Paul v. LaClair, 479 
N.W.2d 369, 371 (Minn. 1992).  A county board's denial of a conditional use permit 
is a quasi-judicial decision because it requires a county board to determine facts 
about the nature and effects of the proposed use and then exercise its discretion in 
determining whether to allow the use.  Shetka v. Aitkin County, 541 N.W.2d 349, 
352 (Minn. App. 1995), review denied (Minn. Feb. 27, 1996).  Thus, because this 
case involves a quasi-judicial decision – the denial of a conditional use permit – 
and because the county was part of the decisional process, in that county board 
made the decision to deny the conditional use permit, the county is not aggrieved 
by the decision.  Therefore, the county does not have standing to challenge the 
decision.  (The county's position has the flavor of the child who murders its parents 
and then begs for mercy from the court because it is an orphan.) 

Id. (emphasis added).  Shetka has never been overruled. 

To the extent that the Council opts, nevertheless, to try to deny the Company's Final 
Application based on its challenge to the Court of Appeals' colorful rejection in Shetka of a zoning 
body's standing to challenge its own prior rulings, the Company will be forced to file a mandamus 
action under Minn. Stat. ch. 586 to compel the City's approval thereof.  Notably, its mandamus 
action will seek, as a part thereof, the "automatic" recovery of its mandamus damages under Minn. 
Stat. § 586.09 ("[a] plaintiff who is given judgment, shall[ 1 ] recover the damage sustained" 
(emphasis and bracketed information added)).  Pigs R Us, LLC v. Compton Township, 770 N.W.2d 
212, 215-16 (Minn. App. 2009) ("the Minnesota Legislature has altered the common-law 
mandamus action to permit an award of money for damages. Minn. Stat. § 586.09"; "the legislature 

1 "'Shall' is mandatory." Minn. Stat. § 645.44, subd. 16. 

151



City Council of the City of North Oaks, Minnesota 
June 29, 2021 
Page 4 

13344097v16 

modified the common-law mandamus action to include the automatic award of damages" 
(emphasis added)).  And, given the existing high-demand residential market, the Company's 
damages will be significant. 

Based upon these two bars to the apparent intent of Councilmember Watson, the Company 
looks forward to the City's prompt approval on July 8, 2021 of its Final Application. 

Sincerely, 

/s/ Jack Y. Perry 

Jack Y. Perry 

JYP:bln 
cc: Mayor Kara Ries (via email, kries@northoaksmn.gov) 

Councilmember Rich Dujmovic (via email, rdujmovic@northoaksmn.gov) 
Councilmember Jim Hara (via email, jhara@northoaksmn.gov) 
Councilmember Sara Shah (via email, sshah@northoaksmn.gov) 
Councilmember Tom Watson (via email, twatson@northoaksmn.gov) 
City Attorney James Thomson (via email, jthomson@kennedy-graven.com) 
North Oaks Company LLC, Attn.: Mark Houge (via email, mark@northoaks.com) 
Taft Stettinius & Hollister LLP, Thomas L. Bray 

152



153


	City Council Agenda
	Item 6c.  - 06.10.2021 Sp City Council Minutes.pdf
	Item 6d.  - 06.10.2021 City Council Minutes.pdf
	Item 6d.  - 06.18.2021 City Council Minutes.pdf
	Item 6f.  - Birdies for Hope - Gambling Request.pdf
	Item 8a.  - Proposed_Building_Permit_refund_form.pdf
	Item 9a.  - Resolution 1426 Approving 16 Cherrywood Circle CUP.pdf
	Item 9b. - Island Field Council Packet 7.8.2021.pdf
	Night to Unite Proclamation 2021.pdf

